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CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Principal activities and review of business

The Directors present the audited financial statements of Clerical Medical Investment Group Limited (“the Company’) The
Company 1s a limited Liability company domiciled and incorporated m the United Kingdom  Details of the principal subsidiary
undertakings are given in note 14

The principal activity of the Company 1s the underlaking of ordinary long-term insurance and savings business and associated
investment activities in the UK and through non-UK branches The Company offers a range of preducts such as annuities and
ivestment type products principally through independent financial advisers The Company also reinsures business with subsidiary
undertakings and with insurance entities external to the Lloyds Banking Group plc ("LBG")

Single Integrated Insurance Bustness

In preparation for the mtroduction of the Solvency I regime the insurance entities withm LBG's insurance Division were
restructured 1 2011 to bring all relevant entitics under Scottish Widows Group Limted ("SWG") As a result SWG became the
holding company for the enuties within the single ntegrated nsurance business and 1s the ultumate nsurance undertaking for
solvency purposes All subsidianies of $WG are now managed within an overall nsk and capital management framework The capital
management framework will facilitate the monitoring and allocation of capital across the entiies owned by SWG, wncluding those
within LBG Further details on the approach to capital management are set out in note 32

In future, when Solvency Il 1s fully implemented, 1t 15 expected that the Insurance Division of LBG will be able to recognise the
capital diversification benefits which will flow from the management of capital and risk within this overall structure Although the
implementation date for Solvency II within the European Union has been deferred, the structure will enable the business to operate
effectively within the transiionat arrangements that have been proposed

Investment strategy

The Company continuyes to pracuise efficient balance sheet management with a focus on investment and hquidity management
opportumties This includes leveraging wider LBG skills and capabilities where 1t 1s appropriate to do so Activity completed
2012 and future planned activity to invest in higher yielding 1lliquid assets 1s expected to deliver sigmficant increased investment
return to the Company, without increasing credit nisk beyond nisk appetite During 2012 excess hquidity was invested in less liquid
credit assets purchased from, or 1ssued by, parties within LBG, including £510m asset backed securities and covered bonds All
assets were acquired at their fair value Further details on the credit risk and fair value measurement of these assets can be found in
note 32

Gender Neutral Pricing

The European Court of Justice made a ruling on 1 March 2012 that the current nsurance mndustry practice of pricing products
differently for men and women, to reflect differing nisk, would not be allowed from 21 December 2012 To comply with the ruling
the Company ntroduced gender neutral pricing, affecting all new annuity and protection policy quotes, on 12 November 2012 Any
annuity and protection policies quoted before this date and in place before 21 December 2012 are unaffected

Retarl Distribution Review

The Retail Distribution Review ("RDR") 15 an FSA innative designed to increase consumer confidence m the advice they are given
on investments and pensions, and came into effect on 1 January 2013  Financial advisers will meet hugher standards of qualifications
and agree charges for mvestment advice directly with the customer, mstead of bemng paid by commission from the charges on
investment products bought from the Company

There remains significant uncertainty regarding market and consumer behaviour and the resultant impact on new business and
retention which will only become clearer following implementation It 15 expected that, as a result of RDR some independent
financial advisers may choose to exit markets, therefore some customers may look to receive advice elsewhere  Accordingly, the
Company 15 commutted to providing a direct proposition to matntain a high quahty of service to these customers, and has updated its
range of products to deliver transparent and flexible charging selutions for advisers and their clients

Taxation of life assurance companies

The Finance Act 2012 mtroduced a new UK tax regime for insurance compames which took effect from | January 2013 The new
regime, together with current economic forecasts, has had a number of impacts on the deferred tax charge of the Company This has
resulted i an overall additional charge of £2m due to the inclusion of certain investments to the charge to tax under the new regime,
and no 1mpact from the revaluation of tax losses
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
Provision in relation to German insurance business litigation

The Company has received a number of claims in the German courts, relating to policies 1ssued by the Company but sold by
independent intermedianes in Germany, principally duning the late 1990s and early 2000s In 1ts accounts for the year ended 31
December 2011 the Company recogmsed a provision of £175 milhon with respect to this ingation Following decisions in Suly 2012
from the Federal Court of Justice ("FCJ") in Germany the Company has recogrused a further provision of £150 million with respect
to this litigation, increasing the total provision to £325 million

However, there are stil a number of uncertaintics as to the full impact of the FCI’s decisions, and the implications with respect to the
claims facing the Company As a result the ultimate financial effect, which could be matenally different to the provisien, will only be
known once there 15 further clanity with respect to a range of legal 1ssues involved 1n these claims and/or all relevant claims have
been resolved Further information 1n retation to the provision 1s set out 1n note 24

Remsurance changes between Clerical Medical Managed Funds ("CMMF") and Clerical Medical Investment Group ("CMIG"}

On 30" November 2012, an existing umit-linked reassurance arrangement from CMIG to CMMF was partially terminated  Thas
arrangement resulted in the transfer of msurance hiabilities and associated investments of £7,318m  In addition CMIG accepted
CMMF's Self Invested Personal Pension remsurance arrangement with Suffolk Life Annuities Limited

On the same date, CMMF entered into new remsurance agreements to remsure directly written unit-linked habilities and matching
investments of £121m to CMIG  Both this and the partial terminatton had no resultant profit due to the transfers taking place for nil
consideration Further information in relation to the changes to this business are set out 1n note 3

Recapture of reassured business by Halifax Life Limited (201 1)

On 30 September 2011 Hahfax Life Limited { ‘HLL"™), a subsidiary of the Company, recaptured its portfolio of insurance business
from CMMF As a result of the significant reduction 1n 1ts nsks following the recapture, CMMF subsequently effected a caputal
reduction of ordinary share caputal and pard a dividend of £184m to the Company The Company's investment in CMMF was
impaired by £194m following the receipt of the dividend

Issue of subordinated debt

In June 2012 CMIG 1ssued £250m of subordinated debt to Scottish Widows Group, a subsidiary of LBG  Further details of these
financial instruments can be found n note 26

Results and dividend

The result of the Company for the vear ended 31 December 2012 is a loss after tax of £(54)m (2011 loss of £(10)m} The result
reflects the recognition of an additional provision of £150m 1n relation to German insurance business hitigation set out above,
dividends received from CMMF of £50m (2011 £184m) and subsequent impairment of the Company's investment in CMMF of
£49m (2011 £(194)m) The result also reflects market conditions over 2012 Whailst the Company experienced positive retums in
the period on investments held, these were largely offset by changes in the valuve of insurance and investment contract habilities The
Dnrectors consider the result for the year to be satisfactory in light of these factors

During the year, no interim dividends were paid (2011 £ml) The Directors recommend no dividend payment in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012

Key performance indicators

Total premiums received from policyholders were £1,331m (2011 £1,447m) Of thus, £905m (2011 £929m) was recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income, with the remainder being subject to deposit accounting as set out 1n note 1(v)

Funds under management are £22 3bn (2011 £15 8bn) excluding cross holdings The increase 1s mainly due to the remnsurance
change explained above with £7 3bn of assets being transferred into CMIG
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DIRECTORS® REPORT {(continued)

The Directors believe that the Company currently has adequate capital resources and will continue to do so 1n the foreseeable future
Further information on the capital position of the Company 1s given n note 32

The Company also forms part of LBG's Insurance Division  The development, performance and position of the Insurance Division
are presented within LBG’s annual report, which does not form part of this report

The Directors consider that the above are the key performance indicators which are appropriate to the principal activity of the
Company These, together with other metrics which cover customer, operational measures and capital, are included 1n the balanced
scorecard which 1s used to measure all aspects of the performance of the business In addition, the Directors are of the opimnion that
the information contamned in the Company’s Financial Services Authornity ("FSA™) returns on capital resources and requirements and
regular actuarial reports, in conjunction with the nformation presented 1n the financial statements as a whole, provide the
management mformation necessary for the Directors to understand the development, performance and position of the business of the
Company Along with fellow direct and indirect subsidiaries of the ultimate insurance parent undertaking, the Company 15 included
in the calculation of the Scotish Widows Group capital surplus This 1s calculated 1o accordance with the Insurance Groups
Directive, and 1s reported in the LBG annual report

Outlook
The Directors consider that the Company’s principal activities will continue unchanged 1n the foreseeable future
Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are subject to a number of risks The financial nisk
management objectives and policies of the Company and the exposure to market, insurance, credit, financial soundness, conduct,
operational and political nisk and uncertainties are set out in note 32

In addimon, the Company 1s also exposed to financial and prudential regulatory reporting risk, in particutar the nisk of reputational
damage, loss of investor confidence and/or financial loss arising from the adoption of inappropnate accounting policies, ineffective
controls over financial reporting or over prudential regulatory reporting and financial reporting fraud The financial and nisk
management objectives and policies of the Company 1n respect of financial and prudential regulatory reporting risk are also set out 1n
note 32

The Company, like other insurers, 1s subject to legal proceedings in the nermal course of business Whilst 1t 15 not practicable to
forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe that such
proceedings, mcluding lingation, will have a matenal effect on the results and financial position of the Company except for the
German surance business Litigation, for which a provision has been established, as discussed earlier 1n this report and set out
note 24

Directors

The names of the current Directors are listed on page 3 Changes in directorships during the year and since the end of the year are as
follows

R J M Bulloch {appointed 01 January, resigned 31 December 2012)
D J Walkden {appointed 01 January 2012)

Lord A P Leitch (resigned 29 February 2012)

R Harns (resigned 29 February 2012)

C A C M Schrauwers  (appotnted 14 May 2012)

Lord Blackwell {appointed 01 September 2012)

M A Fisher (appointed 19 September 2012)

G N Stewart {resigned 05 October 2012)

M G Culmer {appointed 31 October 2012)

A M Parsons {appointed 09 November 2012)

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 33

All Directors have the benefit of a contract of indemnity, which 15 both a Qualifying Third Party Indemnity Prevision and a
Qualifying Pension Scheme Indemnity Provision This was n force duning the whole of the year Directors no longer 1n office but
who served on the Board at any time in the year had the benefit of this contract of indemnity during that peniod of service
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
Dusclosure of information to auditors

Each person who 15 a2 Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as the Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
mformation This confirmation 1s given, and should be interpreted in accordance with, the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company follows the Prompt Payment Code’ published by the Department for Business Innovation and Skills (“BIS ),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers A copy of the code and information about 1t may be obtained from the BIS website

The Company s policy 1s to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the
date of the invorce, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 1s the policy of the Company to abide by agreed terms
of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of contract

The processing of invoices from supphers and settlement of trade creditors 15 undertaken by Scotish Widows Services Limited
("SWE") within the Scottish Widows Group The number of days shown in this report, to comply with the provisions of the
Compantes Act 2006, 15 13 days (2011 14 days)

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Drirectors are responsible for preparing the Directors Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs’) as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors are required to

«  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

¢  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+  state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained n the financial statements, and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 mappropriate to presumne that the company will
continue 1n bustness

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that

the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Onb f the Board of Directors

K ran

A M Parsons
Director

21 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP
LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Clerical Medical Investment Group Limuted for the year ended 31 December 2012,
which compnise of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied mn their preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 7, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us 1o comply with the Audiung Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thss report, including the opimions, has been prepared for and only for the Company s member as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or 10 any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtmming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounung policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accountng estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors’ report and financial statements to 1dentify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
mconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financral statements

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts loss and cash flows for the year
then ended,

e  have been properly prepared 1n accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

*  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opnion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the nformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, i our
opinion

e  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches not
visited by us, or
the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of Directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

K Lacmnod-

Karyn Lamont (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

21 March 2013
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m

Revenue
Gross eamed prermems 905 929
Prermums ceded to reinsurers (40) (26)
Premiums net of retsurance 865 903
Fee and commissien income 4 35 84
Investment income 5 556 969
Net gains on assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6 443 38
Total revenue 1,949 1594

Expenses
Gross claims and benefits paid 2,212 2448
Claims recoveries from remnsurers 2% (12)
2,183 2,436
Change n insurance contract and participating investment contract habihities 22 (828) (815)
Change n non-participating investment contract liabilihes 924 (170)
Change n assets ansing from reinsurance contracts (804} (7
Change in unallocated surplus 23 {2) (304)
(710) (1,296)
Operating expenses 7 558 767
Expenses for asset management services recerved 34 40
Finance costs 9 49 40
641 847
Total expenses 2114 i 987
(Loss)/profit before tax {165) 7
Taxation credit/{charge) 10 111 {7
Loss for the year (54 (10)

Other comprehensive income

Movement in net investment hedge, net of tax 1 1
Currency translation differences, net of tax 19) ()
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income (54) (10)

The notes set out on pages 13 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (31%6171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
2012 2011
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Intangible assets including intangible nsurance assets 11 148 183
Deferred costs 12 439 452
Deferred tax assets 13 24 1
Investment in subsidianes 14 7,760 4,651
Investment properties 15 699 691
Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held 16 1,042 8,275
Current tax receivable 13 95 98
Prepayments 2 2
Denvative financial instruments 17 593 695
Loans and receivables 18 259 331
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 19 14,866 11,287
Cash and cash equivalents 20 243 197
Total assets 26,170 26,863
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attnibutable to Company’s equity shareholder
Share capital 21 70 70
Share premium 1 1
Retained earmnings 1,330 1,384
Total equity 1401 1,455
Liabilities
Insurance contract and participating mvestment contract habilities 22 14,993 15,821
Unallocated surplus 23 56 58
15,049 15,879
Deferred tax habilities 13 133 242
Current tax payables 13 28 17
Provisions for other hiabilities and charges 24 289 171
Accruals and deferred income 25 27 23
Subordinated debt 26 846 595
Non-participating investment contract liabilities 27 7.862 7,723
Derivative financial instruments 17 267 286
Other financial habilities 28 268 472
Total habulities 24,769 25,408
Total halmhities and equity 26 170 26,863

The notes set out on pages 13 1o 65 are an integral part of these financial statements

Approfed he Board on 21 March 2013

A M Parsons
Director

10




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
2012 2011
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profit before tax (165) 7
Adjusted for
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets including intangible insurance
assets . 35 19
Dividends received from subsidiary undertaktngs 5 (50) (334)
Movement 1n deferred costs 13 18
Finance costs 9 49 40
Net decrease in operating assets and habilities 29 170 (50)
Proceeds from 1ssue of subordinated debt (250) -
Taxation paid (M (34)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (205) {334)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends recerved b 30 334
Net cash inflows from investing activities 50 334
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of subordinated debt 26 250 -
Finance costs paid 9 {49) (40)
Net cash outflows from financing activities 201 40
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 46 (40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 197 237
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 243 197

The notes set out on pages 13 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements

11




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
Notes Issued share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
£m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2011 76 1 1,394 1,465
Loss for the year and total comprehensive income for - - iam (10}
the year
Balance as at 31 December 2011 70 1 1,384 1,455
Loss for the vear and total comprehensive income for - - (54) (&2))
the year
Balance as at 31 December 2012 70 1 1,330 1,401

Not all of the above amounts can be distributed to the equity shareholders since the Company 15 required to meet regulatory capatal

requirements Further details are given in note 32

The notes set out on pages 13 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(a)

(b)

Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, which have been consistently applied to all
penods presented in these financial statements unless stated otherwise, are set out below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared

(1) 1n accordance with the International Accounting Standards (‘ IASs’) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs’ ) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Standards and Interpretations ( SICs’ ) and
International Financial Reporung Interpretations ( IFRICs’) issued by 1ts International Francial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee, as endorsed by the Eurepean Union,

(2} 1 accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRSs,

(3) 1 respect of the Company’s with profit fund habilities, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS™) 27
“Life Assurance” 1ssued by the United Kingdom Accounting Standards Board, and

(4) under the usioncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial assets
and financial habiliues at fair value through profit or loss, as set out 1n the relevant accounting policies

The Directors are sausfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future
Accordimgly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis

In accordance with IAS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements’, assets and hiabilities in the balance sheet are presented in
accordance with management s estimated order of liquidity  Analysis of the assets and habilities of the Company into
amounts expected to be received or settled within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after
the reporting date (non-current) 15 presented 1n the notes

The Company has taken advantage of the provisions of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not disclosed a
staternent of comprehensive income and related notes n respect of the Company

Standards and interpretations effective in 2012

A number of standards, amendments to and interpretations of published standards which have the potential to impact on the
Company's financial statements have been 1ssued and are mandatory for accounting peniods beginming on or after 1 January
2012 Therr relevance to the Company's financial statements 1s assessed at note 36

Details of those IFRSs pronouncements which will be relevant to the Company but which were not effective at 31 December
2012 and which have not been appited 1n preparing these financtal statements are given im note 37

Product classification

The Company 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance nisk or financial risk or both
Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts which transfer significant insurance risk  Such contracts may also transfer financial
nisk As a general guideline, the Company defines as sigmificant insurance nsk the possibihty of having to pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the mnsured event were not to occur
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, 1t remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its hfetime,
even tf the insurance nisk reduces sigmficantly over ime

Investment contracts

Any long term contracts not considered to be surance contracts under IFRSs because they do not transfer significant
insurance nish are classified as investment contracts  Such contracts are further analysed between those with discretionary
participating features ("participating investment contracts") and without discretionary participating features ("non-
participating investment contracts”)

A participating investment contract gives investors a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits,
addiwonal discretionary benefits or bonuses that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits, through
participation in the surplus ansing from the assets held in the fund

13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(©)

(d)

Accounting policies (continued)

The Company has the discretien within the constraints of the terms and conditions of the nstrument to allocate part of this
surplus to the policyholders and part to the Company’s equity sharcholders Participating investment contracts are accounted
for in the same manner as insurance contracts in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts

Non-participating investment contracts are contracts that neither transfer sigmificant insurance nsk nor contains a
discretionary participating feature

Hybrid contracts

For certain investment contracts, the contract can be partly invested in units which contain a participating feature and partly
without Where the contract 15 split, pan 1s allocated as a non-participating investment contract and part as a participating
mvestment contract

Financial assets and financial habihities

Management determunes the classification of 1ts financial assets and financial habilities at initial recogmition  Management’s
policies for the recognition of specific financial assets and financial habiliies, are set out under the relevant accounting
policies

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Company has transferred substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership Financial habilities are derecognised only
when the obligation spectfied in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

All financial assets and financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss, with the exception of certain
loans and receivables, subordinated hablities, borrowings and other financial hiabilities which are stated at amorused cost,
(as discussed n pohicies (n), (u), () and (x) respectively) and denvatives (policy m) The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets and financial habihties were acquired Certain financial assets and financial liabihities,
whose default accounting treatment would be to record these balances at amortised cost, are instead designated at fair value
through profit or loss as they are held to match insurance and investment coatract liabilities hinked to the changes n fair
value of these assets and Labilities, thereby reducing measurement inconsistencies, and reflecting the fact that these are
managed and their performance evalvated on a fair value basis  Information on these balances 1s provided internally on a fair
value basis to the Company’s key management The Company’s investment strategy 1s to ivest in equity and debt secunities,
loans, investment property, derivatives and cash and to evaluate the Company’s investments with reference to their fair
values For further details on the Company’s fair value methodology see policy ())

Revenue recognition
Premium income

Premiums received in respect of life insurance contracts and participating investment contracts are recogmised as revenue
when they become payable by the policyholder and are shown before deduction of commission Premiums ceded to
rewinsurers are recogmsed when the related gross premiums are recogmsed Gross and ceded premiums are recorded through
the relevant lines in the statement of comprehensive income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commssion income 15 recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which 1t 1s earned  Fee
and commussion received that relates to the provision of future services 1s deferred and recogmised as the services are
provided

The Company receives ongoing investment management fees which are recognised as revenue as the services are provided

The Company also receives imitial investment management fees tn the form of an adjustment, or charge, to the amount
mvested These fees are n respect of services rendered 1n conjunction with the 1ssue and management of mvestment
contracts where the Company actively manages the consideration received from its customers to fund a return that 15 based on
the mvestment profile that the customer sclected on oniginatton of the contract These services comprise an ndeterminate
number of acts over the lives of the individual contracts and, therefore, the Company defers these fees and recognises them
on a straight-line basis over the estimated hves of the contracts unless there 1s evidence to support an alternative recognition
basis Where an alternative recognition basis 1s apphed, this 15 calculated by reference to experience information 1n respect
of the period over which mcome from contracts 1s earned  The income 1s recognised through the statement of comprehenstve
income, within fee and commuission income  The Lability 1s recogmsed 1n the balance sheet within accruals and deferred
income unttl recognition critena are met ’
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(e)

)

Accounting policies (continued)

Net gains and losses on assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gains and losses on assets and Labilities at fair value through profit or loss includes both realised and unrealised
gans and losses Movements are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the pertod in which they anse

Investment iIncome

Interest income for all interest-beaning financial instruments 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income as it
accrues, within investment income

Dividends receivable 1n respect of listed shares or collective investment vehicles distributions are recogmsed on the date that
these are quoted ex-dividend, other dividend income 1s recogmised when received  All dividends received are recognised

through the statement of comprehensive income, within investment income

Rental income 1n respect of investment properties 1s recogmised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease The cost of
incentives are recognised as a reduction of total income over the term of the lease on a straight line basis

Expense recognition
Claims

Claims are recorded as an expense on the earher of the matunty date or the date on which the claim 1s notified Claims
recoveries from remsurers are recogmised when the related claims are recogmsed Claims and claims recoveries are
recognised through the relevant lines in the statement of comprehensive income Claims handling costs and interest on late
claims are also included 1n claims

Operating expenses

Commission paid 1n respect of the business wntten by the Company 1s recognised through the statement of comprehensive
income, within operating expenses Where certain criterra are met, commission and other acquisition costs may be deferred

The circumstances under which such costs are deferred are set out at policy (h) Subsequent amortisation of deferred costs 1s
recognised as set out in policy (h) )

Other operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as mcurred, within operating expenses

Expenses for asset management services recerved

Expenses for asset management services received are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as they accrue,
within expenses for asset management services recerved

Finance costs

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as it
accrues, within finance costs

Leases

Assets leased to or from third parties, including properties leased to tenants, are classified as finance leases if the lease
agreements transter substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, all other leases are classified as
operating leases Operating lease rental income and expenditure are recogrised on a straight-hne basis over the life of the

leases through the statement of comprehensive income, within investment income and operating expenses respectively

Properties leased out to tenants under operating leases are included 1n investment properties in the balance sheet
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(h)

U

Accounting policies {(continued)
Intangible assets including intangible insurance assets
(1)  Acquired value of in-force business

Insurance and investment contracts acquired 1n business combanations are measured at farr value at the time of acquisiion
This measurement includes the recognition of an acquired value of n-force  ‘acquired VIF' ) asset which reflects the present
value of future cash flows expected from the business acquired The asset 1s shown gross of attributable tax and a
corresponding deferred tax hability has been established Amortisation of the acquired VIF balance and related tax 1s carried
out on a best estimate basis over the estmated tife of the contracts The amortisation charge for the year 15 recognised
through the statement of comprehensive mncome, within operating expenses The carrying value of the acquired VIF balance
15 tested for impawrment at each reporting date  Such an asset 15 not recognised n respect of future profits on contracts
written 1n the normal course of business

(n) Software development costs

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and to bring to use the
specific software These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the sofiware, not
exceeding a period of five years The amortisation charge for the year in respect of software hicences and software
development costs 15 recogmised through the statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses The carrying
value of the assets 15 tested for impairment at each reporting date  Further information on the Company’s impairment policy
1$ set out at policy (p)

Deferred costs

(1) Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquinng new msurance contracts and participating investment contracts (excluding those assessed on a 'realistic
basis' 1n accordance with FRS 27}, which are incurred during a financial period but which relate to subsequent financial
peniods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins The deferred acquisition cost asset
1s amortised over the hfetime of the related contracts based on the pattern of margins ansing from these contracts unless there
1s evidence to support an alternative recognition basis Where an altemative recognition basis 1s applied, this is calculated by
reference to experience information 1n respect of the period over which income from contracts 1s earned The amortisation
charge for the year 1s recognised through the statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses  The carrying
value of the asset 1s tested for impairment at each reporting date  Further information on the Company’s impairment policy 15
set out at pohicy (p)

() Deferred orngination costs

Costs which are directly attnibutable and incremental to securing new non-participating investment contracts are capitalised
This asset ts subsequently amortised over the estimated contractual lifetime of each policy on a straight-line basis unless there
1s evidence to support an alternative recognition basis Where an altemative recogmtion basis 1s applied this 1s calculated by
reference to experience information 1n respect of the penod over which income from contracts 1s earned The amortisation
charge for the year 1s recognised through the statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses The carrying
value of the asset 15 tested for impatrment at each reporting date  Further information on the Company’s imparrment policy 18
set out at policy (p)

Investment 1n subsidiaries

The Company owns a number of subsidiaries as set out in note 14 Certamn subsicharies do not form part of actively managed
mvestment portfolios, and the risks and rewards of owning those subsidiaries primanly rest with the equity shareholders of
the Company, including such investments where ownership of the subsidiary 1s split between the Company's long-term fund
and it's shareholder fund Those subsidiaries are held nitally at cost, being the fair value of the consuderation given to
acquire the holding, then subsequently at cost subject to imparrment  Further information on the Company’s impairment
policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Certain subsidiaries, including holdings in collective investment vehicles {(which mcludes QEICs) are held primanly as
vehicles through which specific investments are held as part of the actively managed investment portfolios These
subsidiaries hold assets which are designated at far value through profit or loss in accordance with [AS 39 “Financial
Instruments Recogmition and Measurement and prnimarily match pohicyholder habilities Accordingly, subsidianes which
are managed as part of policyholder investment funds are carmed at farr value and changes in their fair value are reflected in
the statement of comprehensive income, within net gains and losses on assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Accounting policies (continued)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

[nvestments at fair value through profit or loss compnise debt and equity securities and loans
Classification

A financial asset is classified 1n this category at inception 1f acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term,
1f 1t forms part of a porifelio of financial assets in which there 1s evidence of short-term profit-taking, or 1f designated as such

Recognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, 1e the date the Company commits to purchase the
asset from, or deliver the asset to, the counterparty  I[nvestments are initially recogmised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value

Measurement

The fair values of investments are based on current bid prices  If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, and also for
unlisted securities, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techmiques  These include the use of similar arm’s
length transacuons and reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, making maximum use of market mputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific mputs

For equity investments that are quoted and actively traded n organised financial markets, fair value 1s determined by
reference to Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the final pricing point on the reporting date  Prices are provided by
vendors such as Reuters or Bloomberg or by direct reference to the Stock Exchange

For quoted debt secunity investments, bid prices at the final pricing point on the reporting date are obtained from mdex
providers who obtain prices from a number of leading brokers, investment banks and market makers Where no independent
price 1s available, a valuation technique 1s used to determune fair value The technique uses a spread over a comparable term
gilt as the best estimate of fair value Spreads are calculated by reference to the wider market movement 1 credut spreads, the
way In which the security 1s structured, other assets 1ssued by the 1ssuer or other assets with stmilar charactenstics

For corporate bonds, the Company’s management perform a comparison of information recerved from the index provider
used against other available price sources on a monthly basis to ensure that prices can be supported by market data

The fair value of holdings 1n collective mnvestment vehicles (including OEICs and Unit Trusts) 15 determined as the last
published price apphcable to the vehicle at the reporting date

[n additon to the measurement policies, investment assct prices are reviewed weekly to identify those assets where the price
has not moved for at least six days This review provides an imitial indication that the market for each 1dentified asset may be
mactive These assets are then reviewed by managernent who may identify an alternative price source for assets which in their
view are stll actively traded On conclusion that a particular asset 1s lliquid, management will 1dentify an alternative
valuation technique by deciding whether an appropnate price can be obtained from a recognised independent broker Where
this 1s the case, the broker will be approved as a price source for the asset A price will then be obtained from the broker on a
monthly basis A review of all illiquid assets and prices obtained or calculated 15 conducted by the Fair Value Pricing
Commttee on a monthly basis

For equity tnvestments such as private equity, fair value 1s determined by reference to the most recent valuation, adjusted for
any cash movements or other relevant information since the last valuation pont, which 1s likely to be up to one quarter prior
to the reporting date

In order to ensure that a faur value 1s recogrused for unquoted or 1lliquid debt secunities, the primary price source 15 an
external broker valuation If available, a further external broker valuation is sought as a secondary valuation source 1n order
to validate the primary source A formal review 1s then carried out which challenges the external valuation and includes
consideration of the impact of any relevant movements n underlying vanables such as

underlying movements 1n the relevant markets, for example credit spreads,

how current transactions are being priced n the market,

how the security 1s structured, and

any supporting quantitative analysis as appropnate, for example with reference to Bloomberg or mnternal models
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)
Property investments through special purpose vehicles

The Company nvests tn a number of mvestment properties through holdings m special purpose vehicles (“SPVs’) SPVs are
imtially recogmsed at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given After imitial recogniuon, such assets are accounted
for and measured at fair value, which equates to the relevant proportion of the published net asset value of the company This
valuation 1s based on open market valuations of the properties held by the SPVs, as provided at the reporting daie by
mdependent valuers

Fair value methodology

All financal imstruments carned at fair value are categonsed into a “fair value hierarchy’ as follows
(1) Level 1

Valued using quoted prices (unadjusied) m active markets for 1dentical assets and liabalities to those being valued An active
market 1s one in which arm’s length transactions in the instrument occur with beth sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis Examples include hsted equities, listed debt securities, open ended
mnvestment compantes (OEICs) and umit trusts traded 1n active markets and exchange traded dervatives such as futures

(n) Level 2

Valued using mputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly {derived from prices) If the asset or liabihity has a specified {contractual) term, a Level 2
input must be observable for substantialiy the full term of the asset or hability Level 2 inputs mclude the following

s Quoted prices for simlar (but not :dentical) instruments 1n active markets,

s Quoted prices for 1dentical or similar instruments 1n markets that are not active, where prices are not curment, or
price quotations vary substantiaily either over time or among market makers,

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the instrument (for example, interest rates and yield curves
observable at commonly quoted intervals and default rates),

»  Inputs that are derived prnincipally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means

Examples of these are secunities measured using discounted cash flow models based on market observable swap yields and
listed debt or equity securities in a market that 1s inactive

(m) Level 3

Valued using mputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market datz (unobservable mputs)
Unobservable inputs may have been used to measure fair value where observable inputs are not available This approach
allows for situations in which there 1s hittle, 1f any, market activity for the asset or Liability at the measurement date (or market
information for the inputs to any valuation models) Unobservable mputs reflect the assumptions the Company considers
that market participants would use n pricing the asset or liablity, for example certam private equity nvestments held by the
Company

Where estimates are used, these are based on a combination of independent third-party evidence and mternally developed
models, calibrated to market observable data where possible

Further analysis of the Company s mstruments held at fair value 15 set out at note 32

The Company 5 management, through a Fair Value Pricing Comemittee, review informatton on the fur value of the
Company’s financial assets and financial habilities and the sensttivities to these values on a regular basis

No assets are classified as held-to-mamrity or avarlable-for-sale Derivative assets (other than a derivative which 1s a
designated and effective hedging mstrument) are classified as held for trading  Whth the excepuion of derrvative liabihues, no
liabilities are classified as held for trading Further information on derivatives 1s set out at policy (m)

Transaction costs incidental to the acquisition of a financial asset are expensed through the statement of comprehensive
mncome, within net gains and losses on assets and liabihities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial habihties are offset and the net amount reported 1n the balance sheet only when there 15 a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to reahse the
asset and settle the hability simultancously
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Accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties comprise frechold and long leasehold land and buildings, which are held either to earn rental income
or for capital appreciation, or both, are imtially measured at cost, bemng the fair value of the consideration given, mcluding
directly attnbutable transaction costs Subsequently, on a penodic basis and at each reporting date, such properties are
carned at fair value as assessed by quahified external appraisers who have recent experience inn the relevant location and the
category of properties being valued Fair value 15 based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset If this information 1s not available, alternative valuation methods such
as discounted cash flow analysis or recent prices in less active markets are used Investment property being redeveloped for
continuing use as mvestment property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair
value

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period n which they arise, within net gains and losses on assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Assets anising from reinsurance contracts held

The Company cedes reinsurance 1n the normal course of business Where the reinsurance contract transfers significant
msurance nisk to the reinsurer, the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held are classified as msurance contracts Where
the remnsurance contract does not transfer significant insurance risk to the reinsurer the assets arising from reinsurance
contracts held are classified as financial assets designated as fawr value through profit or loss

Assets anising from rewnsurance contracts held — classified as insurance contracts

These assets are recogmsed within assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held  Amounts recoverable from or due to
rensurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the underlying contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract These balances are subject to an annual impairment review Further information on the
Company’s impairment policy is set out at policy (p)

Premiums ceded and ciaims reimbursed are recogmsed when due and disclosed separately on the face of the statement of
comprehensive income Changes 1n these assets are recogrused on the face of the statement of comprehensive income,

through change 1n assets ansing from remnsurance contracts held

Assets ansing_from reinsurance contracts held — at fair value through profit or loss

Amounts due from remnsurers in respect of contracts that do not transfer sigmficant msurance nisk to the rewnsurer are
designated as fair value through profit or loss as this ensures consistency of valuation with the underlying habilities These
contracts, whilst legally reinsurance contracts, do not meet the definition of a reinsurance contract under IFRSs  Where this
15 the case, the amounts recoverable have been recognised as a financial asset within assets arising from reinsurance contracts
held Changes n these assets are recogmsed on the face of the statement of comprehensive income, through change n assets
ansing from remsurance contracts held These balances are subject to an annual impairment review Further information on
the Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Derivative financial instruments

Classification

Denvative financial instruments, including embedded denivatives, are held for trading, with the exception of derivatives
which are designated as effectrve hedging instruments, which are held at fair value through profit or loss Denvatives held

for trading are used for the purposes of efficient portfolio management or to match contractual lhabiliues

Recognition

Derivatives are imtially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value
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Accounting policies (continued)

Measurement

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recogmuion 15 the transaction price unless the fair value of that
mstrument 1s evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions 1n the same nstrument

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in acuve markets, including recent market transactions  For over-the-
counter { *OTC”) denivatives the value 1s dernved from a herarchy of valuation sources, as follows

s  primary source — an :ndependent valuation source
»  secondary source — generally, this would be the counterparty valuation
e tertiary source — generally, this would be the fund manager valuation

Data from a primary source will imtially be used n valuing denvatives However, tolerance checks are also performed
between valuauons dernived from different sources in order to vahdate the calculated valuations, detect any potential
discrepancies and, 1f appropriate, select a secondary or tertiary price for use in the valuation nstead If, as a result of this
process, the pnmary, secondary and tertiary values for an instrument are not withi tolerance then the valuation 1s referred
to the relevant authority within Insurance Finance to agree a final pncing decision

For exchange traded contracts, the value 1s based on the quoted bid price at close of business where the centract 15 an asset
held or liability to be 1ssued  Where the contract 1s an asset to be acquired or ltabihity held, the value 1s based on the quoted
offer price at close of business

Changes 1n the fair value of derivatives held for trading are recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive income, through
net gains and losses on assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Hedge accounting

In limited circumstances, denivatives are designated as fair value hedges Hedge accounting allows one instrument, generally
a derivative such as a swap, to be designated as a hedge of another instrument such as a loan

Dertvatives may only be designated as hedging mstruments provided certain strict criteria are met At the inception of a
hedge, 1ts terms must be clearly documented and there must be an expectauon that the denvative will be highly effective in
offsetung changes 1n the fair value of the hedged nsk The hedge documentation must also specify the methodology that wall
be used to measure effecuveness Changes 1n the fair value of denivauves that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded 1n the staternent of comprehensive income, through net gains and losses on assets and habihties at farr value
through profit or loss, together wath the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are attributable to the
hedged nisk

The effectiveness of the hedgmg relationship must be tested throughout its hife A hedge 15 regarded as highly effective 1f the
change 1n fair value of the hedge instrument and the hedge item are negatively correlated within a range of 80% to 125%,
either for the peniod since effectiveness was last tested or for the period since inception Where the hedge 1s highly effective,
the net impact on the statement of comprehensive income 15 rmunirmised  If, at a reporting date, 1t 15 concluded that the hedge
1s no longer highly effective 1n achieving 1ts objective, the hedge relattonshuip 1s terminated Should this happen, changes in
the fair value of the hedged 1tem are no lenger recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and the adjustment that
has been made to the carrying amount of the hedged item 15 amortised to the statement of comprehensive income over the
period to maturity of the hedged 1tem

Changes n the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income, together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged nsk If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are no longer recogmised n the statement of comprehensive mcome The cumulative
adjustment that has been made to the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s amortised to the statement of comprehensive
income using the effective interest method over the peniod to maturity

Changes 1n the fair value of derivatives that qualify as a net mvestment hedge on foreign cperations are taken to other
comprehenstve mcome when the hedge 1s deemed to be effective  The neffective pertion of any net investment hedge 15

recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income immediately

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 17
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Accounting policies (continued)
All denvatives are presented as assets when their fair value 1s positive and as habilities when their fair value is negative
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active
market and that are not designated as fair value through profit or loss at imtial recognition

Loans and receivables are mtially recogmised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, subject to impairment With the exception of certamn long-term loans made to related parties, in
practice the carrying value of these balances equates to the fair value due to the short-term nature of the amounts included
within loans and recervables

A charge for impairment n respect of loans and receivables would be made 1n the statement of comprehensive income when
there 1s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their original terms
The impairment charge would be recognised through operating expenses in that part of the statement of comprehensive
mcome  Recervables anising from insurance contracts are also classified n this category and are reviewed for impairment as
part of the impairment review of loans and receivables  Such amounts are reflected through the statement of comprehensive
ncome, within gross premiums written and claims recoveries from rensurers  Further mformation on the Company’s
impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank, short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less {excluding such investments as otherwise meet this defimtion but which are held for investment purposes
rather than for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments) and bank overdrafts where a legal right of set off

£X15ts

Impairment

Financial assets

The carrying value of all financial assets held at amortised cost 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable The identification of impairment and the determunation of
recoverable amounts 15 an inherently uncertain process involving vanous assumptions and factors, including the financial
condition of the counterparty, expected future cash flows, observable farr pnices and expected net selling prices An
impairment loss 15 recogmsed for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds 1t's estimated recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to seil and 1t's valug in use

Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe, for example land, are not subject to depreciauion or amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An mmpairment loss 1s recogmised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts estimated recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value tn use For the purpose of
assessing 1mpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 1dentifiable cash flows

If there 15 objective evidence that ar impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss 1s charged to the relevant line in
the statement of comprehensive income in the period 1n which it occurs Non-financial assets for which impairment was
recognised i pnior pertods are reviewed for posstble reversal of the impairment at each reporting date
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Accounting policies (continued)
[mpairment process

Objective evidence that an asset or group of assets 15 impaired includes observable data that comes to the atiention of the
Company about the following events

() sigmificant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or debtor,

() a breach of contract,

(1) the disappearance of an active market for that asset because of financial difficulues, or

(1v} observable data indicaung that there 1s a measurable decrease 1n the estimated future cash flow from a group of

assets since the mtial recogmtion of those assets, even where the decrease cannot yet be 1dentified with the
indsvidual assets of the Company, including

- adverse changes in the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors, or

- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defauits on the assets in the Company

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for assets that are indrvidually
significant If the Company determnes that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed asset,
whether significant or not, 1t includes the asset in a group of assets with simular credit nsk charactenstics and collectively
assesses them for impairment Those charactenstics are relevant 1o the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the 1ssuer’s ability to pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the debt nstrument
being evaluated Assets that are individually assessed for impatrment and for which an impairment loss 1s or continues to be
recognised are not tncluded 1n a collective assessment of impairment

Taxes

Tax on the profit or loss for the year 15 recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income within taxation and comprises
current and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates and legislation enacted or
substanttvely enacted at the reporting date, together with adjustments to estimates made in prior years

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided 1n full, using the Liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpeses at the reporting date However, 1f the deferred tax
anses from ininial recognition of an asset or liability 1n a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 1t 1s not accounted for The amount of deferred tax provided
15 based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and Liabiliies, using tax rates
and legislation enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utihised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporing date and reduced to the extent that 1t 15 no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utiised Deferred

tax assets and habilites are undiscounted

Allocation of tax charge between equity shareholders and policyholders

The tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income 1s analysed between policyholder and shareholder tax  This
allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be applied to the returns under current UK tax rules

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there 1s no obligation to transfer cash or other assets Incremental costs directly
attributable to the 1ssue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax

Dividends pavable

Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recogmised 1n equity in the period 1n which they are approved

22




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

(s)

Accounting policies (continued)
Insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

The Company 1ssues hife insurance contracts to protect customers from the consequences of events (such as death, cnucal
illness or disability) that would affect the ability of the customer or their dependants to maintain their current level of income
and also 1ssues pension and annuity contracts Guaranteed claims paid on occurrence of the specified insured event are either
fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder

Insurance contracts or participating investment ¢ontracts in the Company s With Profits Fund

Liabilities of the Company’s With Profits Fund, including guarantees and options embedded within products written by that
fund, are accounted for under the “realistic™ method 1n accordance with the requirements of FRS 27 However, 1n contrast to
the approach used for the FSA’s realistic capital regime, projected transfers out of the fund into other funds of the Company
are not treated as insurance lhabilities, but are recorded 1n unallocated surplus Changes in the value of these Liabilities are
recognised In the statement of comprehensive income through changes n insurance contract and participating investment
contract habilities

Insurance contracts which are not umit-linked or in the Company’s With Profits Fund

The hiability 15 calculated by estimating the future cash flows over the duration of in-force policies and discounting them back
to the valuation date, allowing for probabilities of occurrence The habihity will vary with movements n interest rates and
with the cost of life assurance and annuity benefits where future mortality 15 unacertain - Assumptions are made in respect of
all matenal factors affecting future cash flows, including future interest rates, mortality and costs Changes 1n the value of
these hiabilities are recogmised in the statement of comprehensive income through changes in insurance contract and
participating investment contract habilities

Insurance contracts which are unit-linked

Allocated premiums in respect of unit-linked contracts that are life insurance contracts or participating investment contracts
are recogmised as liabilines  These habilities are increased or reduced by the change n the unit prices and are reduced by
policy administration fees, mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals Where the mortality charges deducted 1n
each period from the policyholders as a group are not considered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims 1n
excess of the contract account balances 1n each period, additional habilities are estabhished for these claims Revenue consists
of fees deducted for mortality, policy adminisiration and surrender charges Interest or changes in the unit prices credited to
the account balances incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statement of comprehensive mcome, through
changes n insurance contract and participating mnvestment contract habiliies Benefit claims in excess of the account
balances incurred m the period are charged as expenses m the statement of comprehensive income, through gross claims and
benefits paid

Unallocated surplus

Any amounts 1n the With Profits Fund not yet determined as being due to policyholders or the equity shareholders and

projected transfers out of the fund to other funds of the Company are recogmised as an unallocated surplus which 1s shown

separately from the other insurance habilities

Bonuses

Bonuses reflected in the statement of comprehensive income 10 a given year comprise

+ Unit price increases and new reversionary bonuses declared in respect of that year which are provided within the
calculation of msurance contract and participating investment contract liabilities, and

« Termmal and internim bonuses paid out to policyholders on matunty and included within gross claims and benefits

Receivables and pavables

Receivables and payables are recognised when due These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance
contract holders
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Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when 1t
1s probable that the obligation will result in an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropniate, the
risks specific to the Liabihty

The Company recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be denved from contracts are less
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts

Contingent habilihes are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertan or cannot be measured rehably Centingent habilines are
not recognised 1n the financial statements but are disclosed unless the hkelthood of possible obligations ansing 1s remote

Subordinated debt

Subordmnated debt comprises dated and undated loan caputal and 1s carried at amortised cost adjusted for any hedged interest
rate rsk Interest payable 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income, through finance costs

Dated subordinated debt 1s classified as a hability due to there being a contractual obligation for cash settlement

The undated subordinated guaranteed bonds are classified as a hability on the basis of the existence of a capital
disqualification event considered to be a genwne settlement provision 1n the context of current uncertainty surrounding the
direction of future regulatory rule developments

Non-participating investment contracts

The Company s non-participating mvestment contracts are primanly unit-linked These contracts are accounted for as
financial liabihities whose value s contractually linked to the fair values of financial assets within the Company’s unitised
investment funds The value of the unit-linked financial habilities 1s determmed by the value of comresponding umit-linked
financial assets attributed to the contract holders at the balance sheet date Their value 1s never less than the amount payable
on surrender, discounted for the required notice peniod where applicable Investment income allocated to non-paricipating
investment contracts 1s inctuded 1n change 1n non-participating investment contract habilities

Deposits and withdrawals are not accounted for through the statement of comprehensive mcome but are acceunted for
directly 1n the balance sheet as adjustments to the non-participating investment contract hability

Fee and commission income 1n relation to non-participating unit-linked mvestment business 1s presented within the statement
of comprehensive income within fee and commssion income

Liabihity adequacy test

At each reporting date, hability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the msurance and participating
investment contract liabihiies net of related deferred costs and acquired value of 1n-force business In performing these tests,
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and policy adnumstration expenses, as well as
tnvestment income from assets backing such habihties, are used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to the statement of
comprehensive ncome, utially by writing off the relevant assets and subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
ansing from the hability adequacy tests

Other financial habilities

Other financial hiabilities are initially recogrused at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost  In pracuice, the carrying value of these balances equates to the fair value due to the short-term
nature of the amounts included within other financial liabilities

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmised inrtially at fair value, being the 1ssue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value 1$ recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income through finance costs over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest rate applicable to the instrument In practice, due to the nature of these balances, being bank overdrafts,
the carrying value equates to the fair value of these habilities as the borrowings are repayable on demand
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Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation

Each of the Company's operattons measures items mncluded 1n the financial statements using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which 1t operates {the "funcuional currency”) The functional currency of the majonty of the
Company's operations 1s pounds sterling The financial staterments are presented mn pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest
million (* £m™), which 1s the Company’s presentational currency

Monetary items denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the reporting
date Non-menetary rtems denomunated 1n foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated at the exchange
rates ruling at the date when the current fair value 1s determined Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction Revenue transactions
and those relating to the acquisition and reahisation of mvestments have been translated at rates of exchange ruling at the ume
of the respective transactions Any exchange differences are dealt with 1n that part of the statement of comprehensive income
1n which the underlying transaction 1s reported

The results and financial position of the Company's foreign operations that have a funcuonal currency different from the
presentational currency are translated nto the presentational currency as follows The assets and habilities of foreign
operations are translated into sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The income and expenses of
foreign operations arc translated 1nto sterling at average exchange rates, unless these do not approximate to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange differences ansing on the translatton of fereign operations are recogmsed n other
comprehensive income

Collateral

The Company receives or pledges collateral in the form of cash or secunties n respect of denvative transactions it
undertakes The Company also receives collateral in the form of securities in respect of stock lending agreements, repurchase
agreements and certamn loans made to related parties Collateral received 1s recognised as an asset on the balance sheet when
the nsks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred to the Company A corresponding liability for repayment of
collateral 1s recognised 1n financal labilities Collateral received that 15 not recognised in financial liabilines on the balance
sheet 15 legally segregated from the assets of the Company Collateral pledged continues to be recognised as an asset on the
balance sheet unless the nisks and rewards have been substantially transferred to the counterparty
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(b)

(c)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

The Company’s management makes estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and habilities
Estimates and judgments are contnually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, mcluding
expectalions of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised 1n the period 1o which the estimate 1s revised and in any future periods affected

Insurance contract and participating imvestment contract habilities

The estimation of the ultimate liabihity ansing from nsurance contracts and participating investment contracts which are not
unit-linked 15 the Company’s most cntical accounting estimate

In accordance with FRS 27, the hiabilities of the Company’s With Profits Fund are calculated using a stochastic simulation
model which values habihities on a basis consistent with tradable market option contracts (a ‘market-consistent’ basis) The
habulities are sensitive to both investment market conditions and changes to a number of non-economic assumptiens, such as
the level of take-up of opttons inherent m the contracts, mortality rates and lapses prior to dates at which a guarantee would

apply

For msurance contracts outside the With Profits Fund, the liabiliies are calculated using a projection of future cash flows
afler making prudent assumptions about matters such as investment return, expenses, credit default and mortality Dhscount
rates used to value the liabilities are set with reference to the nisk adjusted yields on the underlying assets The most enuical
non-economic assumptions are mortality rates in respect of annuity business written and levels of future expenses Such
assumptions are based on recent actual experience, supplemented by ndustry mformation where appropnate No cnitical
accounting estimates apply for participating investment contracts as the contract hiabilities ansing outside the With Profits
Fund are almost entirely current unit values

At each reporting date, the estimates and assumptions referred to above are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be
reflected 1 adjustments to the liability, through the statement of comprehensive income Further information on these

balances 1s given 1n note 31

Sensitivities regarding changes to key assumpuions wn calculating msurance contract and participating investment contract
Liabilities are given 1in note 31

Intangible assets and intangible insurance assets

Acquired value of in-force business

Following the acquisition of Clerical Medical and General Life Assurance Society in 1996, the Company holds an asset
representing the acquired VIF The asset 15 calculated by projecting the future surpluses and other cash flows attnbutable to
the Company ansing from business wntten, excluding the value of future investment risk margmns, discounted at an
approprate rate The key assumptions used 1n estmating future surpluses relate to lapse rates and expenses

The assumptions were determined on 2a best-esimate basis and, as above, were based on recent actual experience and
ndustry information where appropriate  Amortisation of this balance and related tax 1s carried out on a best estimate basis
over the estmated hfe of the contracts The amortisation charge for the year 15 recogmsed through the statement of
comprehensive mncome, within operating expenses  The carrying value of this asset 1s tested for impatrment at each reporting
date Further information on this asset 1s given i note 11

Deferred costs

For msurance contracts and participating investment contracts (excluding those assessed on a realistic basis’ in accordance
with FRS 27), acquisiion costs which are incurred during a financial period but which relate to subsequent financial periods
are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins Al other costs are recognised as expenses
when meurred The calculation of the deferred acquisition cost asset and its pattern of amortisation requires estimation of
both the expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins and the period that the business 1s expected to remain in force

Further information on this asset 1s given in note 12

The recogmition of costs in respect of non-participating investment contracts 1s governed by IAS 18 ‘Revenue™ Under this
standard, directly attributable and incremental costs to securing new business are capitalised and are then subsequently
amortised over the period of the provision of the investment management services Estimation 15 required of the period that
the business 15 expected to remain n force and prudent assumptions are required for contracts which do not have a fixed
maturity date
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Cnitical accounting estimates and judgments n applying accounting pohcies (continued)

Taxation

The Company recogmses current and deferred tax assets in line with IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ In recognising these assets,
management takes into account the hkely impact of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongomg discussion with HM Revenue and

Customs and other tax authorites With regard to the Company’s deferred tax assets, a significant feature 1s the management
Judgment applied in determining the timing, sensitivities and probatnlity of them reversing  This judgment 1s based on tax
forecasts reflecting new business assumptions, sensitivities and proposed management actions  Further information in
relation to the Company’s current and deferred tax assets 1s set out at notes 10 and 13

Provisions for ather liabihities and charges

The Company has received a number of claims 1n the German courts, relating to policies issued by the Company but sold by
independent intermediaries in Germany, principally during the late 1990s and early 20005 In its accounts for the year ended
31 December 2011 the Company recognised a provision of £175 million with respect to this litigation Following decisions
in July 2012 from the Federal Court of Justice ("FCJ") in Germany the Company has recognised a further provision of £150
mullion with respect to this hitigation, increasing the total provision to £325 mllion

However, there are still a number of uncertainties as to the full impact of the FCJ’s decisions and the implications with
respect to the claims facing the Company As a result the ultimate financial effect, which could be materally different to the
provision, will only be known once there 1s further clanity with respect to a range of legal 1ssues involved 1n these clauns
and/or all relevant claims have been resolved Further information n relation te the provision 1s set out in note 24

Fair value of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS 7, the Company categorises financial instruments carried on the balance sheet at fair value using a
three level hierarchy Financial instruments categornised as level | are vatued using quoted market prices and therefore there 15
minimal judgement appiied in determining fair value However, the fair value of financial instruments categorised as level 2
and, in particular, level 3 ts determined using valuatien techmiques These valuation techmiques involve management
Judgement and estimates, the extent of which depends on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of market
observable information Further details of these valuations are described 1n note 32
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Termination of exasting reassurance arrangement between CMIG and CMMF and other remsurance changes

On 30 November 2012, an existing umt-linked reassurance arrangement from the Company to CMMF was partally
termuinated, with the property fund lhabiiies continuing to be reassured to CMMF  The recaptured business did not
previously transfer remnsurance risk and so 15 not accounted for through the statement of comprehensive income The
recapture 15 accounted for directly in the balance sheet, with the derecognition of £7,197m of assets ansing from reinsurance
contracts held offset by the recognition of net assets, principally investments held at fair value through profit and loss

The related CMMF Self Invested Personal Pension ('SIPP') reinsurance arrangement with Suffolk Life Annuities Limited was
novated to the Company The novation of this business to CMIG from CMMF resulted 1n the recognition of £47m of assets
anising from reinsurance contracts held at fair value through profit and loss, offset by associated investment contract
habilities

In addition, on the same date, CMMF entered into new reimnsurance agreements to remsure £121m of its directly written umit-
linked non-participating investment contracts pension business to the Company This new business has been accounted for
n accordance with the accounting pohcy for non-participating investment contracts (v) with this not accounted for through
the statement of comprehensive income, but accounted for directly in the balance sheet as adjustments to the non-
participating investment contract hability

These transactions referred to above had no impact on any gamns or lesses as the transfer took place for ml consideration

Fee and commission income

2012 2011
£m £m
Fee income from remnsured business 77 78
Change in deferred income 2 5
Other 6 |
Total 85 84
Investment income
2012 2011
£m £m
Net income on mvestments designated at fair value through profit or loss 443 489
Interest (payable)/receivable on swap (2) 2
Financial instruments at amortised cost
Interest income on deposits 2 4
interest income from group undertakings 3 -
Dividend income from subsidiary undertakings 50 334
Rental income on investment properties 51 56
Foreign currency translation differences 16 79
Other )] 5
Total 556 969
Net gams/(losses) on assets and hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2012 2011
£m £m
Denvative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (127) 37
Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss 669 108
Investment properties at fair value through profit or loss (23) 27
Foreign exchange (76) (80)
Fair value hedge adjustment in respect of swap - 6
Farr value hedge adjustment for change in value of subordinated debt - (6)
Total 443 38

The fair value hedge adjustments in the above table reflect gains and losses arising 1n respect of undated subordinated debt
1ssued by the Company which forms part of a hedge relattonship  Further information 1n respect of this subordinated debt 15
set out at note 26
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7 Operating expenses

2012 2011
£m £m

Acquisition and origination costs in respect of insurance and investment
contracts 52 64
Expenses for administration 260 297
312 36l
Provision 1n relation to German insurance business hitigation 150 175
Change in deferred costs 13 18
Amortisation and impairment of acquired VIF 33 18
Amortisation of software development costs 1 1
Impairment of nvestment 1n subsidiaries 45 194
Total 558 767

An impairment charge of £49m has been recogmised during the year (2011 £194m) agamst the carrying value of CMMF, a

subsidiary undertaking, to reduce its carrying value to its net asset value as detailed in the Directors’ report

The administration of the Company 1s undertaken by other group companies A recharge 1s levied from these undertakings to

the Company 1n respect of those costs ncurred on behalf of the Company

The Company had no direct employees during the year (2011 nil} The employee costs, including pension costs and share-

based payment costs, are included in the recharge noted above

Auditors’ remuneration

2012 2011
£000 £000
Fees payable to the company s aucditor for the audit of the company s annual financial statements 398 419
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
Audit-related assurance services 420 430
Non-audit services - 25
Total 818 874
Audit fees for 2012 and 2011 were bomne by another company within the group and recharged to the company
Finance costs
2012 2011
£m £m
Interest payable on swap 6 8
Interest on subordinated debt 43 32
Total 49 40
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10, Taxation
(a) Analysis of tax credit/(charge)
2012 2011
£m £m
Current tax:
UK corporation tax 2@ 51
Overseas tax (2) (6)
Adjustment in respect of prior years a7 6
Total current tax (21) 51
Deferred tax
Ongmation of temporary differences 113 (85)
Change 1n tax rate 7 17
Adjustment 1n respect of prior years 12 -
Total deferred tax 132 (68)
Total iIncome tax credit/(charge) il (7

The pohcyholder tax benefit or expense 15 included in mcome tax expense Policyholder tax 1s a crednt of £2%m (2011

charge of £90m), including a prior year tax charge of £4m (2011 charge of £2m)

{b) Reconcihation of tax (charge)/credit

2012 2011
£m £m
(Loss)/profit before tax (165) 7
Tax at 24.5% (2011: 26.5%) 40 (2}
Effects of
Impairment of substdiaries {12) 50
UK tax basis for life insurance profits 45 -
Tax exempt imncome 14 89
Policyholder tax 22 (66)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years () 8
Overseas tax - (6)
Change 1n tax rate 4) 17
Other 7 (6)
Total 111 (UK

The standard rate of Corporation Tax m the UK changed from 26% to 24% with effect from | Apnl 2012 Accordingly, the

company's profits for this accounting period are taxed at an effective rate of 24 5%

The Finance Act 2012 reduced the rate of corporation tax from 24% 1o 23% with effect from 1 April 2013 The impact of this
reduction 1n tax rate, which 1s apphcable to the calculation of deferred tax assets and habibities at the reporting date, 15

reflected 1n the above table

The Finance Act 2012 introduced changes to the taxation of life assurance companies with effect from 1 January (see Note
13} The impact of these changes on the calculation of deferred tax assets and habilities at the reporung date 1s reflected 1n the

above table
11 Intangible assets including intangible insurance assets
2012 2011
£m £m
Acquired VIF {a) 148 181
Software development costs (b} - 2
Total 148 183
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11. Intangible assets including imtangible insurance assets (continued)
{a) Acquired VIF
2012 2011
£m £ m
Cost
At 1.January and 31 December 651 651
Accumulated amortisatton and impairment
At 1 January 470 452
Amortisation during the year 33 18
At 31 December 503 470
Carrying amount
At 31 December 148 181
Of the above total, £129m (2011 £148m) 1s expected 1o be recovered more than one year after the reporting date
(b)  Software development costs
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 6 6
Disposals n -
At 31 December 5 6
Aceumulated amortisation
At 1 January 4 3
Amortisation charge for the year 1 1
At 31 December 5 4
Carrying amount
At 31 December - 2
Of the above total, mil (2011 £1m) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date
12, Deferred costs
2012 2011
£m £m
Deferred acquisition costs (a) 302 285
Deferred ongination costs (b) 137 167
Total 439 452
{(a)  Deferred acquisition costs
2012 2011
£m £m
At 1 January 285 269
Amounts incurred during the period 80 81
Amortisation during the period (63) {65)
At 31 December 302 285

Of the above total, £242m (2011 £219m) 15 expected to be recovered more than one vear after the reporting date
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12, Deferred costs (continued)

(b) Deferred origination costs

2012 20117
£fm £m

At 1 January 167 201
Amounts incurred during the period 1 2
Amortisation during the peniod 31 (36)
At 31 December 137 167

Of the above total, £124m (2011 £140m} 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

13. Tax assets and habihties

2012 2011

£m £m

Current tax receivables 95 98
Deferred tax assets 24 1

Total tax assets 119 99
Current tax payables 28 17
Deferred tax habilities 133 242

Total tax habilities 161 259

Deferred tax assets include £24m (2011 £1m) that 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

Deferred tax llatnhties include £140m (2011 £242m) that 1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date

(a) Recognmised deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets agamst current

tax habihties and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority The amounts are as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Deferred tax assets comprise
Trade losses 13 -
Other 11 1
Total deferred tax assets 24 1
Deferred tax habthities comprise
Unrealised gains on investment assets - -
Deferred acquisition costs 99 111
Other insurance related items - 56
Deferred tax on acquired VIF 34 75
Total deferred tax habilities 133 242
Net deferred tax halities 109 241

The Finance Act 2012 reduced the rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 The impact of
this reduction in tax rate, which 1s applicable to the calculation of deferred tax assets and habiliies at the reporting date, 15

reflected in the above table
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14

Tax assets and habilities (continued)

The Finance Act 2012 introduced a new UK tax regime for insurance companies which took effect from 1 January 2013
The new regime, together with current economic forecasts, has had a number of impacts on the deferred tax charge of the
Company This has resulted 1n an overall additional charge of £2m, compnising £m] due to the revaluation of policyholder
tax assets, £2m due to the mclusion of certain investmeats to the charge to tax under the new regime, and £ml due to the
revaluation of tax losses

The tax charge in the statement of comprehensive income relating to each of the above items 15 as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Trade losses 13 -
Unrealised gains on mvestment assets - 15
Expenses deductible n future periods - (62)
Other deferred tax assets - -
Deferred costs 12 12
Other wnsurance iems 66 (41)
Acquired value in force 41 8
Total deferred tax (charge)/eredit 132 (68)

{b) Unrecognised deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed for tax losses carnied forward only to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit 1s
probable

Deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of unrelieved capital losses of £17m (2011 £25m), as there 1s
msufficlent certamnty as to the availabihity of future profits

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised n respect excess expenses carried forward of £76m (2011 £63m), as there 1s
msufficient certainty as to the availabihity of future profits

The Company has a sigmficant With Profits pension business The business 15 subject to UK corporation tax on the basis of a
notional return determined by UK taxation authorities To the extent that the actual retum from the business 1s less than the
notional return, tax losses accurnulate which may be carried forward and offset against excess returns in future years The
maxmmum potential value of these losses at 31 December 2012 was £285m (2011 £282m) No asset has been recognised in
respect of these losses as 1t 1s unlikely that there will be excess returns 1n future years against which they can be offset

Investment 1n subsidiaries

2012 2011

£m £ m

At 1 Janvary 4,651 1,998
Movements in holdings of subsidiaries at fair value 6 (38)
Movements mn holdings of collective investment vehicles at fair value 3,152 2,885
Impairment of 1nvestment in subsidiaries carned at cost (49) (154)
At 31 December 7,760 4,651

Investmenis tn subsidianes held at cost are generally recoverable more than one year after the reporting date  Due to the nature of
mvestments in collective investment vehicles (including OEICs), there 1s no fixed term associated with these investments

An impairment charge of £49m has been recognised dunng the year (2011 £194m) aganst the carrying value of CMMEF, a
subsidiary undertaking, to reduce carrying value to its net asset value Of the above total, £486m (2011 £535m) relates to
subsidianies carmed at cost [nvestments in subsidiaries held at cost are generally recoverable more than one year afier the
reporting date
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14. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

15

The foilowing are particulars of the Company’s principal subsidianes

Country of Nature
Class of Share or Percentage Registration or of

Name Stock held Incorporation Business
Clenical Medical Managed Funds Ordinary 100 England and Wales Life Insurance
Limted
Halifax Life Limited Ordinary 100 England and Wales Life Insurance
Clenical Medical Forestry Limited Ordinary 100 England and Wales Investments
CM Venture Investments Limuted Ordinary 100 Isle of Man Investments
Clerical Medicat Non-Sterling Ordinary 100 Luxembourg Property
Property Company Sarl Investments
St Andrew’s Life Assurance Plc’ Ordinary 100 England Life Insurance

* indirect holding

The Company also mvests i a number of collecuve investment schemes including OEICs which have been classified as
investments in subsidiaries as descrnibed in the accounting policies

The abihity of regulated entities to pay cash dividends to the Company or repay loans or advances 1s restricted by regulatory
solvency requirements as well as Companies Act distributable reserves requirements  The ability of non-regulated entities to
pay cash dividends to the Company or repay loans or advances 1s restnicted by Companies Act distributable reserves
requirements

Investment properties

2012 2011

£m £m

At 1 January 691 868
Addiions — new properties 25 -
Additions — subsequent expenditure on existing properties 16 17
Dhisposals )] {167)
Net loss from change 1n fair values (26) (27)
At 31 December 699 691

The rental income ansing from investment properties during the year amounted to £51m (2011 £56m), which 15 included in
investment income Direct operating expenses (included within operating expenses) arising 1n respect of such investment
properties during the year amounted to £1m (2011 £5m)

Expenditure on wnvestment properties which did not generate rental income was £1m (2011 £2m)

The investment properties are independently valued by CB Ruchard Eliis and Jones Lang LaSalle on at least a quarterly basis
for the purpose of determining the open market value of the properties

The carrying value of investment properties under development 1s £20m (2011 £27m) The carrying value of land held for
development purposes that has not yet been developed 1s £mil (2011 £3m)

Due to the nature of the above assets, there are no fixed terms associated with these investiments
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17

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts held

The Company's assets arising from reinsurance contracts held can be analysed between those classified as insurance contracts
and those classified as financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss as follows

2012 2011
Classified as Classified as
Insurance  Fairvalue Total [nsurance  Fair value Total
contracts through contracts through
profit or loss profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 284 7,991 8,275 116 9,406 9,522
Movement recogmised through the statement of (32) 836 804 168 (161) 7

comprehensive Income
Movement recognised directly through the balance

(8,037) (8,037 (1,234) (1,254)

sheet

At 31 December 252 790 1,042 284 7,991 8,275
Amounts in respect of insurance and participating 252 - 252 284 432 716
investment contract liabihties

Amounts n respect of non-participating mvestment - 790 790 - 7,559 7,559

contract liabilities

252 790 1,042 284 7.991 8273

Assets ansing from remsurance contracts held include £923m (2011 £7,398m) that 15 expected to be settled more than one year
after the reporting date

In previous years remnsurance contracts which did not transfer significant insurance nisk were classified as insurance contracts
where these were held 1n respect of mnsurance contract habilities In hight of developing practice, these amounts (2012 Nil, 2011
£432m) are now classified as financial assets designated at fair value through mcome in accordance with the underlying
reinsurance contracts The associated premuums ceded to remnsurers (2012 £15m, 2011 £18m) and claims recovered from
remsurers (2012 £52m, 2011 £57m) have been reclassified accordingly within the statement of comprehensive income

Dervative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into swap contracts, option coniracts, index futures contracts and
forward foreign exchange contracts  All such contracts are undertaken erther for efficient portfolio management purposes
or for the purpose of matching contractual habihties In addition, the Company has entered into a swap for the speaific
purpose of hedging movements 1 the fair value of certain subordinated debt, as described 1n note 26

Swap contracts include interest and inflahon rate swaps An interest or inflation rate swap 1s an agreement between two
parties to exchange fixed and vanable rate interest payments, based upon nterest or nflation rates defined in the contract,
without the exchange of the underlying principal amount

Option contracts include index and single equity options  Such options represent a contract sold by one party to another
party offering the night, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a financial asset at an agreed price on a specified future date or
within a specified period of time

Index futures contracts are used to hedge the investment portfolio against adverse movements wn underlying markets or
effecting policy switches between markets without the need to trade the underlying securities  Futures may also be used for
the purposes of efficient portfolto management provided that their substance would otherwise be permitted as a series of
direct transactions

Forward foreign exchange contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate
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17 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

Details regarding denivative financial instruments are given in the following tables

2012 2011
Coniract Fair valve Fair value Contract Fair value Fair value
Amount assets habilities Amount assets liabilities
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Derivative financial instruments held for
trading
Swap contracts 2,962 175 260 2.817 142 271
Option contracts 2,219 368 - 2,499 518 -
Index futures contracts 913 11 2 743 1 11
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 1,351 9 5 427 4 3
Denvative financial instruments
designated as fair value hedges 314 30 - 325 30 -
Denvative financial instruments
designated as net investment hedge 284 - - 49 - 1
Total 8,043 593 267 6 862 695 286

Derwvative financial instrument assets imclude £521m (2011 £647m) that 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the
reporting date

Denvative financial mstrument hiabihities include £260m (2011 £271m) that 15 expected 1o be settled more than one year after the
reporting date

The fair value hedge included in the above tables 15 an interest rate swap in respect of the interest payments relating to the
subordiated debt 1ssued by the Company This instrument forms part of a hedge relattonship with the subordinated debt
1ssued

The net investment hedge included n the table above 15 held in respect of the European branch of the Company The hedge
has been put n place to offset the currency exposure relating to the branch with changes mn the fair value of the denivative
being taken directly to equity

18. Loans and receivables
2012 2011
£m £m
Insurance business

Amounts receivable in respect of direct insurance business 15 2
Amounts receivable under reinsurance contracts 1 4

Other loans and receivables
Accrued interest and rent 10 27
Amounts due from related parties 79 156
Other 154 132
Total 259 331

Of the above total, £52m (2011 £8%m) s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

Amounts due from remnsurers represent reinsurance receivables where the Company has the nght to cover losses on contracts
provided to policyholders
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18 Loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of loans to related parties 15 a reasonable approximation of fair value

There 15 no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to loans and recervables Further information in respect of

credit risk, 1s given 1n note 32

19. Investments at fair value through profit or loss
2012 2011
£m £m
At fair value-
Shares and other vanable yield securities 8,317 5,531
Debt and other fixed/vanable income securities 6,549 5,756
Total investments at fair value 14,866 11,287

Of the debt secunues, £5,8%4m (2011 £5,189m) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date Due
to the nature of equity and other vanable yield secunities, there 15 no fixed term associated with these secunties

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for use in the statement of cash flows include the following

2012 2011

£m £m

Cash at bank 75 113
Short term deposits 168 34
Total 243 197

Cash and cash equivalents 1n the above table contatns amounts of £241m (2011 £195m) which are held entirely within the

long-term nsurance funds of the Company These balances are not therefore readily available

21. Share capital

for use by the Company

2012 2011
£ m £m

Allocated, called up and fully paid share capital:
70,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 70 70

There have been ne changes to share capital during the year ended 31 December 2012

22 Insurance contract and participating investment contract habilities

An analysis of the change 1n insurance contract and participating investment contract habilities and reinsurers’ share of insurance

coniract and participating investment contract liabilities 15 as follows

2012 2011

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 15,821 (716) 15,105 16,638 (600) 16,038
Provision 1n respect of new business 393 (112) 281 347 (110) 237
Changes 1n existing business provisions (1,217} 3 (1,214) (1,350} 4 (1,346)
Recapture of reinsurance - 422 422 - - -
Assumption changes (4} 151 147 186 {10y 176
At 31 December 14,993 (252) 14 741 15,821 (716) 15,105
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22.

23.

24.

Insurance contract and participating investment contract liabihities (continued)

On 30 November 2012 the Company partially terminated 1ts umit-linked pension reassurance agreement with CMMF  This
resulted 1n the net reduction of assets ansing from remsurance contracts held m respect of insurance contracts of £422m, this
offset by mcreases to other gross asset classes

As the Company 15 wholly owned by an entity which prepares group financial statements, the Company has taken advantage
of the provisions contained in FRS 27 and has not presented a capital positon statement and supporting disclosures
Information in which the Company 1s included 1s given in the financial statements of Lloyds Banking Group plc

An analysis of the expected maturities of insurance contract and participating investment contract hiabilities 1s given in note 32

Unallocated surplus

An analys:s of the change i unallocated surplus 1s as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

At 1 January 58 362
Change recogmised through the statement of comprehensive income (2} (304)
At 31 December 56 58

Of the above total, £56m (2011 £58m) 1s expected to be settled more than one year afier the reporting date

The With Profits fund commenced a distribution of the excess estate from 1 February 2010 by enhancing the level of future
expected benefit payments

Provisions for other habilhities and charges

2012 2012 2012 201
German insurance Other Total Total

business hitigation
£m £m £m £m
Opening balance 170 1 171 2
Exchange and other adjustments 1 1 -
Charge for the vear 150 - 150 175
Amount utilised in the period (33) - (33) {6)
Closing balance 288 1 289 171

Of the zbove total, £200m (2011 £130m) 1s expected to be applied more than one year after the reporung date

Provision 1n relation to German nsurance business htigation

The Company has recetved a number of claims n the German courts, relating to polictes 1ssued by the Company but sold by
independent intermediaries m Germany, principally duning the late 1990s and early 2000s [n 1ts accounts for the year ended 31
December 2011 the Company recognised a provision of £175 mullion with respect to this litigation Following decisions i July
2012 from the Federal Court of Justice ("FCJ") in Germany the Company has recogmised a further provision of £150 mullion wath
respect to this liigation, increasing the total proviston to £325 miilion

However, there are st1ll a number of uncertainties as to the full impact of the FCI’s decisions, and the implications with respect to
the claims facing the Company As a result the ultimate financial effect, which could be matenally different to the provision, will
only be known once there 1s further clarity with respect to a range of legal 1ssues nvolved in these claims and/or all relevant
claims have been resolved

The Directors believe this provision represents an appropriate estimate of the financial impact based upon a senes of assumptions,
including the number and proportions of claims received from the respective populations of different classes of pohicies, the
proporuon upheld, and resulting legal and admimistration costs
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25

26

Provisions for other habilities and charges (continued)

The Company will re-evaluate the assumptions underlying s analysis at each reporting date as more information becomes
available As noted above, there 1s inherent uncertamnty in making estimates, actual results in future pertods may differ
signuficantly from the amount provided

Other

Other provisions include provisions held in respect enerous leases on mvestment properties

Accruals and deferred income

2012 2011

£m £m

Accrued expenses 9 4
Deferred income 7 10
Deferred revenue on mvestment property 11 9
Total 27 23

Of the above total, £16m (2011 £13m) 1s expected to be realised more than one year after the reporting date
Subordinated debt

Clenical Medical Finance plc, a fellow group undertaking 1ssued debt externaily and m turn loaned the proceeds to the
Company on similar interest, repayment and subordination terms as those applicable to the external bonds The bonds are
guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Company after the claims of the Company's senior creditors, including all
policyholders

On 1* June 2012 CMIG 1ssued £250m of GBP LIBOR + 7 45% Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds matuning on 1 June 2042, to
Scottish Widows Group Limited

The carrying value shown 1n the balance sheet 15 as follows

2012 2011

£m fm

Subordinated debt 794 544
Issue costs 9 9
803 553

Accrued interest on sybordinated debt 18 18
Fair value hedge adjustment ' 25 24
Total 846 595

The carrying value 15 calculated on an effective interest rate basis adjusted for foreign exchange movements, amortised 1ssue costs
and hedged interest rate nsk The 2012 carrying value tncludes a foretgn exchange gan of £14m (2011 £14m)

The fair vatue of the suberdinated debt 15 £870m (2011 £388m), calculated at the open market value using published bid prices
at the reporting date and including £9m (2011 £9m) of amortised 1ssue costs

Detatls of the bonds 1ssued and proceeds loaned to the Company are as follows by

Scottish Widows Group Limited

£250m of floating rate subordinated notes held by Scottish Widows Group Limmuted, 1ssued by CMIG in June 2012 Redemption
of the notes 15 due 1n 2042 However, the notes may be redeemed at an earlier date provided that certain conditions, including the
proviston of six months’ wniten notice of the intention to redeem, are met  Interest 1s payable on an annual basts at a rate of 12
month LIBOR plus 7 45% Repayment of the notes 1s subordinate to the claims of CMIG's semor creditors, including atl
policyholders
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27.

28

Subordinated debt (continued)

Clencal Medical Finance plc

£51m of 7 375% undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds, the redemption of which 1s at the option of Clencal Medical Finance
ple and 15 generally not allowable prior o 5 November 2019 The nterest rate charged to the Company by Clenical Medical
Finance plc 15 7 61%

€219m of 6 45% dated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds matunng on 5 July 2023 Redemption of the bonds 1s at the option of
Clerical Medical Finance ple and 1s generally not allowable prnior to July 2013, after which time 1if the bond has not been
redeemed floating rate interest 1s payable The interest rate charged to the Company by Clerical Medical Finance ple 1s 6 555%

€388m of 4 25% undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds Redemption of the bonds 1s at the option of Clencal Medical Finance
plc and 1s generally not allowabie prior to 27 June 2015, after which time 1f the bond has not been redeemed floating rate
interest 1s payable The interest rate charged to the Company by Clenical Medical Finance plc 1s 4 27% An interest rate swap
has been put m place in respect of the €388m tranche of the subordinated debt, which 1s accounted for using hedge
accounting, as set out 1n note 1{m)

Non-participating investment contract habilities

An analysis of the change in net non-participating investment contract habilities 15 as follows

2012 20t1

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 7,723 (7,559} 164 9,160 (8,922) 238
Provision in respect of new business 37 (37 - 44 (44) -
Changes 1n existing business provisions (66) 78 12 (1,481) 1,407 (74)
Transfer of business 168 6728 6,896 - - -
At 31 December 7.862 {790) 7.072 7,723 {7.559) 164

On 30 November 2012 the Company partially terminated its unit-hnked pension reassurance agreement with CMMF and
accepted the novation of CMMF's reinsurance arrangement with Suffolk Life Annuities Limited  These transactions resulted n
the net reduction of assets ansmg from remnsurance contracts held in respect of non-participating investment contracts of
£6,728m, this offset by increases to other gross asset classes and the recognition of an offsetting non-participating investment
contract Lhabihity of £47m

At the same time CMMF established new reassurance agreements with the Company to remnsure £121m of directly written unit
linked pension business Further information in refation to the changes to this business are set out 1n note 3

An analysis of the contractual and expected matunities of non-participating investment contract habilities 1s given in note 32

Other financial habihties

2012 2011
£m £m

Insurance business
Amounts payable in respect of direct msurance business 88 88

Other Liabilities

BDue to related parties 84 79
Due to brokers 8 6
Social security and other taxes | 3
Repurchase creditor 78 274
Other 9 22
Total 268 472

Of the above total, £78m (2011 £274m)1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date
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29. Increase/decrease 1n operating assets and habihities
2012 2011
£m £m
(Increase)/decrease 1n operating assets-
Investment properties (8) 177
Investment 1n subsidianes held in the long term insurance funds of the Company (3,109) (2.847)
Assets ansing from remsurance contracts held 7.233 1,247
Prepayments - 12
Investments at fair value through profit or loss (3,579) 3.835
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables 72 72
Dernvative financial instruments 102 (194)
Net decrease 1n operating assets 711 2,302
Increase/(decrease) in operating habilities:
Insurance contract and participating investment contract habihities (828) (817)
Unallocated surplus within insurance business 2) (304)
Subordinated debt 251 N
Non-participating investment contract habilities 139 (1,437
Penvative financial instruments (19 152
Other financial lrabihities (204) (273
Provision for other liabilities and charges 118 169
Accruals and deferred income 4 (27)
Net decrease in operating habilities (541) (2,546)
Net decrease/(1ncrease) in operating assets and Liabilities 170 (244)
30. Dwvidends paid
2012 2011
£m £m

Total dividends paid on equity shares

No dividend was paid in 2012 or 2011
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31.

Insurance and investment contract habihities — assumptions, change tn assumptions and sensitivities
Policyholder Liabilities can be analysed into With Profit Fund habilities and Non Profit Fund habilities

(1) Processes used to determine key assumptions in respect of insurance and investment contracts

(a) Liabilities of the With Profits Fund calculated on a “realistic” basis

The Company’s With Profits Fund contains both insurance and participating investment contracts In accordance with FRS 27
the habilities of the With Profit Funds are accounted for using the ‘realistic capital regime of the FSA ( realistic  habilites)
The main components of the realistic habilhities are

With Profits benefit reserves, 1 ¢ the total asset shares for wath-profits policies,
the costs of options and guarantees,

deductions levied against asset shares, and

the impact of smoothing policy

The realistic assessment 1s camed out using a stochastic simulation mode! which values liabilines on a market consistent basis
The calculation of realistic liabilities uses best estumate assumptions of e g mortality, persistency and expenses

The processes for determuming the key assumptions are set out below, and remain unchanged from the prior year

* Investment returns and discount rales

A stochastic economic scenano generator, which uses recognised asset models, provides future asset value and yeld
scenanos, these determine investment returns for each scenario  The economic scenario generator 1s calibrated to observable
yield curves and option prices where possible Nomunal interest rates are modelled using a standard interest rate model,
calibrated to nisk-free yields The nisk-free yield is defined as the spot yields denved from the UK gilt yield curve  The
liabilities are valued by discounting projected furure cash flows using the risk free yield

e Investment volatility

The volatility of future equity returns 1n excess of nominal interest rates has been calibrated to ten-year at-the-money-
forward options on appropriate indices  The indices used are the FTSE-100, the EuroStoxx-50, and the S&P 500 For
property, no observable prices exist and so volatility has been denved from analysis of historic data

+ Mortality

The mortality assumptions, including allowances for improvements in lengevity for annuitants, are based on recent actual
experience, industry tables and mortality rates imphed by indicative remsurance terms

+ Persistency

Persistency 1s a function of both the rate of policy termination and the rate at which policyholders stop paying regular
prermums The assumed levels of these rates are based on a combinatton of historical experience and management’s views on
future expentence taking into consideration potential changes that may result from guarantees and options becoming more
valuable under adverse market conditions

. Maintenance €Xpenscs

Allowance 1s made for the charges applied to the With Profits Fund and these are, for conventional With Profits business,
governed by the Scheme of Transfer

s (uaranteed annuity option take-up rates

The guaranteed annuity option take-up rates are set with regard to the Company’s recent actual expenience, increased to
refiect future uncertainties where the exercise of options by policyholders might increase habilities

(b) Liabilities of the Non Profit Fund

The Company’'s Non Profit Fund contams both insurance and non participating mvestment contracts

(1) Insurance contracts

The insurance contract habilities are determined on the basis of recogmsed actuarial methods and are consistent with the

approach to be used for the FSA returns The methods used nvolve esuimating future policy cash flows over the duration of the
in-force book of policies, and discounting these cash flows back to the valuation date allowing for probabilities of occuirence
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Insurance and investment contract habilities — assumptions, change 1n assumptions and sensitivities (continued)

The habdites will vary with movements i interest rates (this applies in particular to the cost of guaranteed benefits payable in the
future) and with movements 1n the cost of hfe assurance and annuity benefits for which future mortahity 1s uncertain

Assumptions are made 1n respect of all matenal factors affecting future cash flows, including future interest rates, mortality and
costs Generally, assumptions used to value the habilities contain a margin for adverse deviation and are determined as
required by FSA rules This margin for adverse deviation 15 based on management’s judgment and reflects management s
views on the inherent level of uncertainty The assumptions to which the habilities are most sensitive are the interest rates
used to discount the cash flows and the mortality assumptions, particularly those for annuitants The key assumptions used
the measurement of the Non Profit Fund liabilities are

e Interest rates

The rates used are derived consistently with the approach to be used for the FSA returns These limit the rates of interest
that can be used by reference to a number of factors including the dividend and carmings vields on equities, rental
income, and redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date Margins for risk are allowed for in the
assumed interest rates These are derived from the hmits contained in the FSA Rules, including reductions made to the
available yields to allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of each stock, and an over-nding restriction which
lumuts the yield from investments in property by reference to the yield from appropniate long-term gilts

¢ Mortality

The mortality assumptions, mcluding allowances for improvements in longevity for annuitants, are set with regard to the
Company’s actual experience where this provides a rehable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and includes a
margin for adverse deviation [mprovements in female annuitant mortality are assumed to follow the CMI projection
model from the Actuanal profession’s mortality committee subject to a long term rate of improvement of 1 5% per annum
(2011 CMI projection model with a long term improvement rate of 1 5%) Improvements in male annuitant mortahty are
assumed to follow the CMI projection model from the Actuanial profession’s mortahty committee subject to a long term
rate of improvement of 1 5% per annum (2011 CMI projection model with a long term improvement rate of 1 5%)

* Maintenance expenses

Allowance 1s explicntly made for future policy costs Expense loadings are determined by reference to an internal analysis
of current and expected future expense levels, plus a margin for adverse deviations Explicit allowance 1s made for future
expense inflation from the valuation date No allowance 15 made for any expected reductions 1in expense levels that have
not occurred at the valuation date

* Persistency rates

Prudent tapse rate assumptions have been used Whether a lapse rate 1s prudent broadly depends on whether the policy
liability 15 negative or positive at any point wn its hfe  Thus for each policy a high lapse rate 13 assumed where the
projecied liability 1s negative and a low lapse rate 15 assumed where the projected habiiity 1s positive

(n) Non-participating investment contracts

The non participating mvestment contracts are unit-linked, and the hability 1s determined by the value of corresponding unit-
linked financial assets attributed to the contract holders at the balance sheet date

{2} Key assumptions
(a) With Profits Fund

Assumptions are set for the ‘realistic” valuation of the Company’s With Profits Fund In addition, habilities in respect of
non-participating poltcies in the With Profits Fund were also accounted for on the regulatory assessment

(1} Investment returns and discount rates

In the * realistic * valuation of liabihities 1n calibrating the economic scenario generator, the nsk-free yield curve is defined as the
yield curve for UK gilts

(1) Investment volatility (reahistic liabilities only)

The calibration of the stochastic simulation model uses imphied volatilities of derivatives where possible or historical
observed volatility where 1t 15 not possible to observe meaningful prices For example, as at 31 December 2012, the 10 year-
equity-implied-at-the-money assumption was set at 26 3% (27 2% as at 31 December 2011) The assumption for property
volatility was 15% (31 December 2011 15%) The volatility of interest rates has been calibrated to the imphed volatility of
swaptions which was broadly 18% as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011 19%)
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31. Insurance and investment contract habiities — assumptions, change in assumptions and sensitivities {continued)
() Mortality assumptions
The mortality assumptions for the main classes of business are as foilows
2012 2011
Assurances (excluding term assurances)
Conventional With-Profits Males 45% AMCO00 Ultmate 50% AMCO0 Ultimate
Females 60% AFCO0 Ultimate 60% AFCO00 Ultmate
Unitised Assurances Males 85% AMCO0 Ultmate 90% AMCO00 Ultimate
Females 50% AFCOO0 Ultimate 95% AFCO00 Ultimate
Annmties
Self-employed / Personal Males 96% PCMAQ0 (CMI 201 1- 96% PCMAQ0 (CMI 2011-
Pensions 1 25%mimmum improvement 1 25%minimum improvement
rate from 2003) rate from 2003)
Females 94% PCFAOQQ (CMI 2011 - 94% PCFAO00 (CMI 2011 -
1 25%mimmum improvement 1 25%mmimum improvement
rate from 2003) rate from 2003)
Other Annuities 1 payment Males 96% PCMAO0 (CMI 2011- 96% PCMAOQ0 (CMI 2011-
1 25%munimum improvement 1 25%minimum improvement
rate from 2003) rate from 2003)
Females 94% PCFAQO (CMI 2011 - 94% PCFAO00 (CMI 2011 -
1 25%minimum mmprovement 1 25%mimimum improvement
rate from 2003) rate from 2003)
Deferred Annuities Males 96% PCMAO0 (CMI 2011- 96% PCMAQQ (CMI 2011-
1 25%mimimum improvement 1 25%minimum improvement
rate from 2003) rate from 2003)
Females 94% PCFAO00 (CMI 2011 - 94% PCFAQ0 (CMI 2011 -

1 25%minimum 1mprovement
rate from 2003)

With regard to the above tables

The Company's current longevity assumptions are based on CMI_2011 model which was staried last year The CMI intend
to update the model on a regular basis but updates to the reporting basis are only made when a significant movement in rates

has been observed

The release of the CMI_2012 has been postponed to February 2013 Thus 15 to allow for the revised population estimates
which will be published by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) following the 2011 Census Therefore, 1t 1s proposed to
continue to apply the CMI_2011 model projections in the year end basis

(1v) Other assumptions

Deferred annuity contracts with a guaranteed-rate annuity option have been valued based upon an assumed rate of take-up of
the guaranteed annuity option of 85% for the realistic assessment (85 0% assumed at 31 December 2011)

(b) Non Profit Funds

The principal assumptions underlying the calculation of the Non Profit Fund hiabilities are given below

(1) Investment returns and discount rates

Class of business

Conventional Life business and non-unit reserves on linked business

Annuities in payment

2012 2011
Interest rate Interest rate
{net) (net)

Y% %

051 057

223 254
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86 4% PCMAO00 (CMI 2011-
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84 6% PCFAQ00 (CMI 2611 -

1 5%mnimum tmprovement rate
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1 5%minimum 1mprovement rate
from 2003)

86 4% PCMAD0 (CMI 2011-
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3L Insurance and wnvestment contract habilities — assumptions, change 1n assumptions and sensitivities {continued)
(n) Mortality assumptions
The mortahty assumptions for the main classes of business are as follows
2012 2011
Term Assurances
Males 51 75% TMCOO0 Select 57 50% TMCO0Q Select
Females 57 5% TFCO00 Select 63 25% TFCO00 Select
Annuities
Purchased {whole life) Males 86 4% PCMAD0 (CMI 2011- 86 4% PCMAQ0 (CMI 2011-
1 3%mintmum improvement rate 1 5%minimum improvement rate
from 2003) from 2003)
Females 84 6% PCFAOQC (CMI 2011 - 84 6% PCFAOQ0Q (CMI 2011 -

1 5%mimmum improvement rate
from 2003}

86 4% PCMAOQ0 (CMI 201 1-

1 5%mmimurn improvement rate
from 2003)

84 6% PCFAQ0 (CMI 2011 -

1 5%minimurm 1mprovement rate
from 2003)

86 4% PCMAO0Q {CMI 2011-

1 5%minimum improvement rate
from 2003)

84 6% PCFAQQ (CMI 2011 -

1 53%minimum improvement rate
from 2003)

86 4% PCMAO00 (CMI 2011-
1 5%minimum mprovement rate
from 2003)

84 6% PCFAOQ0 (CMI 2011 -

1 5%mmimum improvement rate
from 2003)

With regard to the above tables

The Company’s current longevity assumptions are based on CMI_2011 model which was started using last year The CMI
intend to update the model on a regular basis but it 15 expected that, but updates to the reporting basis are only made when a
signmficant movement 1n rates has been observed

The release of the CMI_2012 has been postponed to February 2013 Thus s to allow for the revised population estimates
which will be published by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) following the 2011 Census Therefore, it 15 proposed to
continue to apply the CMI_2011 model projections in the year end basis

Previous longevity assumplions have apphed since end-2007 These were set following an wn-house consideration of all of
the available industry data and models The results were then calibrated to fit the Intenm Cohort Projections published by
the CMI in 2002 These tables recogmise a ‘cohort’ effect, an observable more rapid rate of improvement for annuitants born
in a pertod centred around 1926

The CMI ‘medum’ projections are now considered out of date by many longevity experts as they are based on insured
pension scheme data up to 1999 Consequently, the number of life offices using these projections has decreased substantially
m recent years and 1t 15 expected that this trend will continue

In November 2009 the CMI published a new mortahty projection model, denoted ‘CMI_2009°, as the CMI had become
concerned about the continuing widespread use of the “interim cohort’ mortality projections The model has been updated
since its 1ssue with the latest update in November 2011, denoted 'CMI_2C11' to reflect the publication of England and Wales
population data for calendar year 2010 We consider it more appropriate to use this new model than revisit the previous in-
house work
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31 Insurance and investment contract habihties — assumptions, change i assumptions and sensitivities (continued)
(3) The effect of changes in key assumptions
(a) With Profits Fund

There 1s no net impact on profit before tax of the changes in key assumptions within the With Profits Fund as any change
policyholder habilities 1s offset by an equal and opposite movement in the unallocated surplus of the long-term business

(b) Non Profit Funds

Changes tn certain key assumptions were made during 2012 with the following impacts on profit afier tax

Variable Impact on profit  Impact on profit
after tax after tax

2012 2011

£m £m

Mottaiity (43) 51
Expenses 27 68
Inflation 13 44
Valuation interest rate & credit default rates {47) (150)

(4) Sensitivity analysis (1n respect of insurance and participating investment contracts only)

The followmg table demonstrates the effect of changes 1n key assumptions on profit before tax assumung that the other
assumptions remain unchanged In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correlated In all
cases there 15 no net unpact on profit before tax of changes in assumptrons within the With Profits Fund as any change in
policyhelder habilities 1s offset by an equal and opposite movement in the unallocated surplus of the long-term busimness

Yariable Change in variable 2012 2011
Impact on profit Impact on profit

after tax after tax

£m £m

Annuttant Mortality 5% reduction 43) 37
Other Mortality 5% reduction - 2
Lapses 10% reduction (23) (21)
Maintenance expenses 10% reduction 38 35
Interest rate — change in redemption yteld 0 25% reduction (49) (36)
Interest rates — change 1n valuation margin @ 0 25% reduction (67) (38)

(1) This interest rate sensitivity shows the mmpact of a 0 25 per cent movement n gilt yields and all of the consequential impacts
on key econormc assumptions including the investment returns, the valuation rates of interest and vaiues of assets backing the
business 1n question This excludes any impact on assets not baching the habilities

(2) This 1nterest rate sensitivity shows, for pensions annuity business. the impact of a change to the valuation rate of interest
without a corresponding change to asset yields, this would increase the margin available to cover default and other nsks
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(2)

(b)

(c)

Risk management

The principal activity of the Company 1s the undertaking of ordinary long-term mnsurance and savings business and associated
investment actuivities 1n the UK and through non-UK branches The Company offers a wide range of life insurance products
such as annuities, pensions, whole hfe, term Iife and mvestment type products principally through independent financial
advisers, the Lloyds Banking Group network and direct sales The Company also reinsures business with subsidiary
undertakings and with msurance entities external to the Company

The Company assesses the relative costs and concentrations of each type of nsk through the Individual Capital Assessment
{ ICA ) and Solvency II capital assessments and material 1ssues are escalated to the Insurance Risk Commitiee and the Insurance
Executive Commuttee

This note summarises these risks and the way in which the Company manages them
Governance framework

The Company 1s part of Lloyds Banking Group, which has established a risk management function with responsibility for
implementing the Lloyds Banking Group nisk management framework within the Company

Responsibility for the setting and management of risk appetite and risk policy resides with the Board, who, manage risks in
line with LBG and Insurance nsk policies The Board has delegated operational implementation to the Insurance Executive
Commuttee

The approach to risk management aims to ensure that there 1s effective independent checking or ‘oversight’ of key decisions
through the operation of a ‘ three lines of defence™ model The first ine of defence 1s line management, who have direct
accountability for nisk decisions The Risk function provides oversight and challenge and form the second line of defence
Internal Audit constiiutes the third line of defence, whose objective 13 to provide the required independent assurance to the
Audit Committee and the Board that nisks within the Company are recognised, monitored and managed within acceptable
parameters

An enterprise-wide risk management framework for the identification, assessment, measurement and management of nsk 1s in
place The framework 15 1 hne with Lioyds Banking Group's nsk management principles and covers the full spectrum of
risks that the Company are exposed to Under this framework, nisks are categonsed according to an approved Lioyds Banking
Group nsk language which has been adopted across the Company This covers the prncipal nisks faced by the Company
including the exposures to market, nsurance, credit, financial soundness and operauonal nsk The performance of the
Company, 1ts continung ability to write business and the strategic management of the business depend on 1ts ability to
manage these risks

Policy owners, 1dentified from appropriate areas across the business, are responsible for drafting the Lloyds Banking Group
and Insurance risk policies, for ensuring that they remain up-to-date and for facihitating any changes These policies are
subject to at least an annual review, or earlier if deemed necessary Limuts are prescribed within which those responsible for
the day to day management of the Company can take decisions Line management are required to follow prescribed reporting
procedures to the bodies responsible for monitonng compliance with policy and controlling the risks

Rusk appetite

The Board has defined the methodology for the management of nisk appetite and approved appropriate mits  Limits are
defined for the Group as a whole and for the individual nisk components The inits are defined in terms of the amount of
capital required to be held to cover certain specified stressed scenarios

Exposure to each type of nsk 1s momitored against the prescribed limits and the results reported to the Board of the Company
Where the exposure to any risk exceeds a trigger amount, the Insurance Executive Commutice must approve an action plan to
reduce the exposure or the Insurance Board must approve a revised timit

Financial risks

The Company writes a vaniety of isurance and investment contracts which are subject to a variety of financial risks, as set
out below Contracts can be either single or regular premium and conventional (non-profit), with profits or unit-hnked m
nature

The Company 15 exposed to a range of financial nisks through 1ts financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and
nsurance and 1nvestment contract habilities  [n particular, the key financial nisk 1s that long-term investment proceeds are not
sufficient to fund the obligations ansing from its msurance and investment contracts The most 1mportant components of
financial risk are market, insurance, credit and financial soundness risk
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Risk management {continued)

The market nisks that the Company pnmanly faces due to the nature of tts investments and habiliies are interest rate, equuty,
foreign exchange and property nisk

The Company manages these risks in a numbers of ways, including nsk appetite assessment and monitorning of capital resource
requirements In addition, the Pnnciples and Practices of Financial Management ( PPFM' } set out the way 1n which the with-
profits business 1s managed The Company also uses financial instruments {including derivatives) as part of its business activities
and to reduce its own exposure to market nsk and credit nsk

For with profits business, subject to mimimum guarantees, policyholders’ benefits are influenced by the smoothed nvestment
returns on assets held in the With Profits Fund The smoothing cushions policyholders from daily fluctuations in mvestment
markets Thus process 1s managed in accordance with the published PPFM

The Company bears financial risk 1n relation to the guaranteed benefits payable under these contracts The amount of the
guaranteed benefits increases as additional benefits are declared and allocated to policies

For unit-linked business, policyholders’ benefits are closely hinked to the investment returns on the underlying funds In the short
term, profit and equity are therefore largely unaffected by investment returns on assets 1n internal umnit-linked funds as any gains
or losses will be largely offset by changes in the corresponding insurance and nvestment contract liabilities, provided

that there 1s appropriate matching of assets and habihties wathin these funds However, any change 1n the market value of these
funds will have an indirect impact on the Company through the collection of annual management and other fund related charges
As markets nse or fall, the value of these charges rises or falls correspendingly

For non-participating business other than unit-linked business such as annuity business, the principal market risk 1s interest rate
risk, which arises because assets and liabilities may extubit differing changes in market value as a result of changes in interest
rates Asset and hability matchig 1s used to mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates where the difference 1s matenal

Financial assets and financial habilities are measured on an ongoing basis erther at fair value or at amortised cost  The summary
stgnificant accounting policies (note 1) describes how the classes of finanetal instruments are measured and how income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised

The nming of the unwind of the deferred tax assets and habilities 1s dependent on the timing of the unwind of the temporary
timung differences, anising between the tax bases of the assets and hatmlities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, to which these balances relate

A matunty analysis of the financial habilities set out in the above tables 1s given n the financial soundness nisk section of thus
note

The sensiivity analyses given throughout this note are based on a change i an assumption while helding all other assumptions
constant In practice, this 1s unlikely to occur as changes 1n some of the assumptions may be correlated, for exampte changes
n interest rates and changes in market values The sensitivity analysis presented also represents, management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible alternative in respect of each sensitivity, rather than worst case scenario positions

(I) Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from unfavourable market
movements This nisk typically anses from fluctuations 1n market prices (equity and property nsk), market interest rates
(interest rate risk) and foreign exchange rates (foreign exchange risk), whether such changes are caused by factors specific to

the individual instrument or 1ts 1ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market

Investment holdings within the Company are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Holdings of
individual assets are diversified to minimise specific nsk and large individual exposures are monitored closely For assets held

outwith unit-linked funds, mvestments are only permutted 1n countries and markets which are sufficiently regulated and hquid

Market risk policy 1s dependent on the nature of the funds in question, and can be broadly summarised as follows

¢  Assets held in shareholder funds are invested 1n money market funds, gilts and investment grade bonds to match regulatory
capital requirements The balance of the shareholder fund assets 1s managed 1n line with the policies of the Lloyds Banking

Group to optimise sharcholder return and risk This includes the suitable use of derivatives to mimmize shareholder risk
e Umt-linked assets are invested 1n accordance with the nature of the fund mandates
Conventronal non-profit habilities are ‘close matched’ as far as pessible in relation to currency, nature and duration

With Profits funds are managed n line with the published PPFM  Benchmarks and minimum and maximum holdings n

asset classes are specified to allow hmited mvestment management discretion whilst ensuring adequate diversificauon
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Risk management (contmued)

Variable rate bonds and associated additional swap transactions provide significant protection to the With Profits Fund from
the effects of interest rate falls in respect of the cost of guaranteed annuity rates

An analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss according to their fair value hierarchy (as
defined 1n note 1{c)) 1s given betow

As at 31 Pecember 2012

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

fm £fm £m £m

Investment in subsidiaries* 7,183 91 - 7,274
Equity secunties 8,056 - 261 8,317
Debt secunties 2,907 3,132 510 6,549
Denvative financial assets 11 582 - 593
Assets anising from remnsurance contracts held - 790 - 790
Total assets 18,157 4,595 771 23,523
Dernvative financial habtlities 2 265 - 267
Non-participating investment contract liabilities - 7,862 - 7,862
Total hiabilities 2 8,127 - 8,129

As at 31 December 2011

Fair value lierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m

Investment 1n subsidiaries* 4,034 82 - 4,116
Equity securitics 5,267 - 264 5,531
Debt securities 3,344 2412 - 5,756
Denvative financial assets 1 694 - 695
Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held - 7.991 - 7,991
Total assets 12,646 11,179 264 24,089
Denvative financial habilities 11 275 - 286
Nen-participating investment contract liabilities - 7,723 - 7723
Total habilities 11 7,998 - 8,009

* Investment in subsidianes exclude those held at cost of £486m (2011 £535m)

Of the debt securities classified as Level 2 above, £3,132m (2011 £2,412m) have been valued using a modelled price or based
on a price from a single broker The models used to derive these prices use only observable data and are therefore level 2 rather
than level 3 The remaining assets are priced using prices obtained via a price vendor This vendor obtains prices from a
number of different market makers 1n corporate bonds and calculates a consensus price to give the best reflection of the market
pnice on that day On the basis that this price may not be based on actual trades and as information regarding the volume of
individual trades 1s not readily availablie, these assets have been classified as level 2 rather than level 1

Assets classified as Level 3 comprise private equity investments, property investment vehicles, certain loans, asset backed
securities and covered bonds

Private equity investments are valued using the financial statements of the underlying companies prepared by the general
partners, adjusted for known cash flows since valuation and subject to a fair value review to take account of other relevant
formation Property investment vehicles are valued based on the net asset value of the relevant company which incorporates
surveyors’ valuations of property  Whalst such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 1s believed that changing one or more
of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change the fair value signtficantly

Asset backed securities and covered bonds classified as level 3 are not actively traded, and are valued using a discounted cash
flow model The valuation incorporates credit risk spreads, which are generally based on observable spreads on similar
securities, plus a liquidity premium Assumptions are made about the expected hife of the secunties, reflecting prepayment
behaviour The effect of applying reasonably possible alternative assumptions to the value of these asset backed secunties
and covered bonds would be to decrease the fair value by £1m or increase 1t by £1m
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Whilst such valuations are sensitive to estunates i1t 15 believed that changing one or more of the assumptions to reascnably
possible alternative assumptions would not change the fair value sigmificantly

The table below shows movements 1n the assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on valuation techmques for which
any significant input 1s not based on observable market data (level 3 only}

2012 2011
im £m £m £m

Assets Liabilines Assets Ligbimies
Balance at 1 January 264 - 321 -
Total net gains/(losses) recognised within net realised and net fair 52 - (32) -
values gains on assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income
Purchases 537 - 4 -
Disposals (82) {29)
Balance at 31 December 771 264
Total gains/(losses) for the period included 1n the statement of 52 - {32} -

comprehensive income for assets and habilities held at 31 December

Total gains or losses for the penod included 1n the statement of comprehensive income as well as total gains or losses relating
to assets and habihties held at the reporting date are presented m the statement of comprehensive income, through net
gains/losses on assets and habilities at fair value through profit or loss

(0 Equity nsk

The exposure of the Compahy’s insurance and mvestment contract business to equity nisk relates to financial assets and
financial habihines whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices other than from interest and foreign
exchange fluctuations This 15 due to factors specific to individual mstruments, their 1ssuers or factors affecting ail instruments
traded in the market Accordingly, the Company monitors exposure hmits both to any one counterparty and any one market

The sensiuvity analysis below illustrates how the fair value of future cash flows 1n respect of equities, net of offsetting
movements in insurance and investment coatract hiabilities, will fluctuate because of changes tn market prices at the reporing

date
2012 2011
Impact on profit afier tax and equity at reporting date £m £m
10% increase in equity prices 1 2
10% decrease 1n equity prices (n (2)

(1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes n
interest rates and the shape of the yield curve [nterest rate nsk n respect of the Company’s insurance and investment contracts
arises when there 1s a mismatch 1n duration or yield between habilities and the assets backing those habilities

The Company's nterest rate nisk policy requires that the maturity profile of interest-bearing financial assets 15 appropriately
matched to the guaranteed elements of the financial habilities

A fall in market interest rates will result in a lower yield on the assets supporting guaranteed investment returns payable to
policyholders This investment return guarantee risk 1s managed by matching assets to habilities as closely as possible  An
increase in market interest rates will result in a reduction in the value of assets subject to fived rates of nterest, which may
result 1n losses 1if, as 2 result of an increase in the level of surrenders, the comresponding fixed income securities have to be
sold
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Risk management (continued)

The effect of changes in interest rates i respect of financial assets which back insurance contract Llabilhies 1s given in note
30 The effect on the Company of changes in the value of investments held 1n respect of mvestment contract liabilities due to
fluctuations 1n market 1nterest rates 1s negligible as any changes will be offset by movements in the corresponding hability
The sensiivity analysis below illustrates how the fair value of future cash flows m respect of interest-bearing financial assets,
net of offserting movements i insurance and wnvestment contract liabihties, will fluctuate because of changes in market
mterest rates ai the reporting date

2012 2011

Impact on profit after tax and equity at reporting date £m £m
_

25 basis points increase 1 yield curves 49 36

25 basis points decrease in yield curves (49) (36)

(1) Foregn exchange risk

Foreign exchange nisk relates to the effects of movements in exchange markets including changes in exchange rates The
overall nsk to the Company 1s mnimal due to the following

*  The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in pounds sterling,

s  The Company’s financial assets are primarily denominated in the same currencies as its insurance and investment contract
Liabilities, and

e Other than sharcholder funds, all non-linked investments of the non-profit funds and the investments of the shareholder
fund are m sterling or should be currency matched The effect on the Company of changes 1n the value of investments
held 1n respect of investment contract habilities due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates 1s neghgible as any
changes will be offset by movements i the corresponding habuity

(2) Insurance risk

Insurance nisk 1s the nisk of reductions n earnings and/or value through financial or reputational loss due to fluctuations n the
timing, frequency and severity of insured events and to fluctuations in the timing and amount of claim settlements The
principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts 15 that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the amounts
expected at the time of determining the insurance habidities

The nature of the Company’s business involves the accepting of insurance nsks which pnmarily relate to mortality, persistency
and expenses The Company underwntes policies to ensure an appropnate premium ts charged for the risk or that the nsk 1s
declined

The Company principally writes the following types of hife insurance contracts

» Life assurance — where the life of the policyholder 1s insured against death or permanent disability, usually for pre-
determined amounts

s Annuity products — where typically the policyholder 1s entitled to payments which cease upon death

For contracts where death 15 the insured nisk, the most significant factors that could increase the overall level of claims are
eprdemics or widespread changes n lifestyle, such as eating, smoking and exercise habits, resulting n earlier or more claims
than expected The possibulity of a pandemic, for example one ansing from Swine Flu, 1s regarded as a potentially significant
mortality risk

For contracts where survival 1s the insured nisk, the most sigmificant factor 1s continued improvement in medhcal science and
social conditions that would increase longevity

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that
significantly reduce the insurance nisk accepted For partictpating investment contracts the participating nature of these
contracts results in a sigmficant portion of the insurance risk being shared wath the policyholder

Insurance nsk 1s also affected by the policyholders’ night to pay reduced or no future premiums, to terminate the contract
completely or to exercise a guaranteed annuity option  As a result, the amount of insurance nisk s also subject to policyholder
behaviour On the assumption that policyholders will make decisions that are in their best interests, overall insurance nisk will
generally be aggravated by policyholder behaviour For example, it 1s likely that policyholders whose health has deteriorated

significantly will be less inclined to terminate contracts insuring death benefits than those policyholders who remain in good
health
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Risk management (continued)

The Company has taken account of the expected impact of policyholder behaviour 1n setting the assumptions used to measure
nsurance and participating investment contract hiabihities

The principal methods available to the Company to control or mitigate longevaty and mortality nisk are through the following
pl’OCBSSCS

Underwriting (the process to ensure that new insurance proposals are properly assessed),

Pricing-to-risk (new nsurance proposals would usually be priced m accordance with the underwniting assessment),
Claims management,

Product design,

Pohcy wording, and

The use of remnsurance and other nisk mitigation techmques

4 & & & & 8

Rates of mortality are investigated annually based on the Company’s recent experience and future mortality assumptions are set
using the latest population data availlable Where they exist, the reinsurance arrangements are reviewed at least annually

Persistency risk 1s the risk associated with the abihity to retain long-term business and the ability to renew shori-term business
The Company aims to reduce 1ts exposure to persistency risk by undertaking various initiatives to promote customer lovalty
These initiatives are aimed both at the point of sale and through direct contact with existing policyholders, for example through
annual statement information packs

Further mformation on assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivities in respect of nsurance and participating
investment contracts 1s given tn note 3 1

(3) Credit risk

Credtt risk 1s the nisk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, as a result of the failure of
the party with whom the Company has contracted to meet 1ts obligations

Investment counterparty default risk arises primartly from holding invested assets to meet habihines, and reinsurer default
credit nsk primanly anses from exposure to reinsurers

Credit risk 1n respect of unut-hnked funds 1s borne by the policyholders and credit risk i respect of With Profits funds 1s
largely borne by the policyholders Consequently, the Company has no sigmificant exposure to credit risk for those funds

For non-hinked funds investments, limits on the exposure to a single entity are specified and monitored Bond exposures are
managed through credit rating bands and maximum exposures to individual assets and sectors are set Assets are restricted to
securities m a specified hist of countries, and Limits applicable to property portfolios are set to prevent concentration of
exposure to single tenants and single buildings

Shareholder funds are managed 1n ling with the Insurance Credit Risk Policy and the wider Lloyds Banking Group Credit
Risk Policy and the principles are the same as those outhined above in respect of non-linked funds

Remsurance 15 primanly used to reduce nsurance nsk  However, it 15 also sought for other reasons such as improving
profitability, reducing capital requirements and obtaining technical support In addition, reinsurance 1s also used to offer
Investment Fund Links which we are unable to provide through other means The Company’s reinsurance strategy 1s to
reduce the volatility of profits through the use of rensurance whilst managing the msurance and credit nsk within the
constraints of the risk appetite Limits

The Company has reinsurance on some hnes of business where mortality risk exceeds set retention mits  This does not,
however, discharge the Company’s hability as primary nsurer If a remnsurer fails to pay a claimn for any reason, the
Company remains lable for the payment to the policyholder All new matenal remnsurance treaties are subject to Board
approval and reinsurance arrangements are reviewed annually to ensure that the remsurance strategy 1s being achieved

Policies are treated as lapsed when payments from the policyholder have not been received for three consecutive months and
the policyholder has not provided further information 1n respect of the non-payment of premiums

Exposure to other trade receivables are assessed on a case by case basis, using a credit rating agency where appropriate
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The tables below analyse financial assets subject to eredit risk using Standard & Poor’s rating or equivalent

As at 31 December 2012

BBB or

Total AAA AA A lower* Not rated

£m £m £m £m £fm £m

Debt securities 6,549 4,221 742 1,007 570 9

Denvative financial instruments 593 - - 563 30 -

Loans and receivables 259 40 11 140 14 54

Assets ansing from remnsurance 1,042 - - 254 35 753%*
contracts held

Cash and cash equivalents 243 - - 233 3 7

Total 8,686 4,261 753 2,197 652 823

*Of which £571m 15 BBB rated
** Relates to the Company's subsidiary, CMMF

Amounts classified as “not rated’ in the above table are not rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent rating agency

As at 31 December 2011

BBB or

Total AAA AA A lower* Not rated

£fm £m £m £fm £fm £m

Debt securnitics 5,756 4,190 183 1,072 302 9

Denivative financial instruments 695 - - 695 - -

Loans and recetvabies 331 41 3 164 7 116

Assets arising from rewnsurance 8,275 - 66 200 9 8,000+*
contracts held

Cash and cash equivalents 197 - - 197 - -

Total 15,254 4,231 252 2,328 318 8,125

*Of which £236m 1s BBB rated
** Relates to the Company's subsidiary, CMMF

Amounts classified as * not rated’ 1n the above table are not rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent rating agency
(1) Concentration risk

Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk relates to the inadequate diversification of credit nisk

The Company requires strict control limits on the denvauve positions held by each fund as set out in the Insurance
Derivatives Risk Poliecy { DRP')

Credit nsk 1s managed through the setting and regular review of counterparty credit and concentration limits on asset types
which are considered more hikely to lead to a concentration of credit nsk For other asset types, such as UK government
securtties or investments i funds falling under the UCITS Directive, no himuts are prescribed as the nisk of credit
concentration 15 deemed to be immatenal This policy supports the approach mandated by the Financial Services Authonty
for regulatory reporiing

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any significant concentration of credit nisk with a
single counterparty or group of counterparties where linuts applied  With the exception of Government bonds and UCITS
funds, the largest aggregated counterparty exposure 1s approximately 8% (2011 4%) of the Company’s total assets,
excluding with-profits and unit-linked funds where credit risk 15 matched by policyholder liabihities
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Risk management (continued)
Liqudity concentration risk

Liquidity concentration risk anses where the Company 1s unable to meet 1ts obhgations as they fall due or do so only at an
excessive cost, due to over-concentration of investments 1n particular financial assets or classes of financial asset

As most of the Company's invested assets are diversified across a range of marketable equity and debt secunties in hine with
the 1nvestment options offered to policyholders 1t 1s unhkely that 2 matenal concentration of Liquidity concentration could
arise

This 1s supplemented by active hiquidity management n the Company, to ensure that even under stress conditions the
Company has sufficient hquidity as required to meet 1ts obligations This 1s delegated by the Board to and monrtored through
the Shareholder and With-Profits Investment Management Commitee ("SAWPIM") Operational Banking Commuttee and
Insurance Finance and Capital Committee

(n) Collateral management
Collateral n respect of derivatives

The Company requires strict control limits on net open derivative positons, namely the difference between purchase and sale
contracts, by both amount and term The amount subject to credit nsk at any one ume 15 limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Company (that 1s, assets), which 1n relation to derivatives 1s only a fraction of the
contract or notional values used to express the volume of instruments outstanding For derivative asset positions, the value of
all collateral held 1s at least equal to the value of the asset held on the balance sheet

The requirement for collateralisation of OTC denivatives, including the levels at which collateral 15 required and the types of
asset that are deemed to be acceptable collateral are set out in a Credit Support Annex (“CSA”) A CSA 15 a bilateral legal
agreement which, once signed, forms part of the International Swaps and Denvatives Association (“ISDA’) agreement
between the Company and the counterparty

A CSA must be completed for OTC denvatives as part of the contracts for such transactions The CSA will require
collaterahsaucn where any net exposure to a counterparty exceeds the OTC counterparty limit, which must be established in
accordance with the DRP The aggregate uncollateralised exposure 1o any one counterparty must not exceed limits specified
in the DRP Where derivative counterparties are related, the aggregate net exposure 1s considered for the purposes of
applying these limits

Acceptable collateral 1s defined in each nstance and must take into account the quality and appropnateness of the proposed
collateral as well as being acceptable to the enuty receiving the collateral Collateral may include the following

Sovereign government debt of developed economies

Supranational debt denominated 1n ehigible currencies

Corperate bonds denomunated 1n eligible currencies

Equities denominated n eligible currencies

Cash (this 15 received and invested 1n the SWIP Global Liquidity Fund)

Assets with the following carryug amounts have been pledged n accordance with the terms of the relevant CSAs entered
into 1n respect of various OTC derivative contracts

2012 2011

£m £m

Investments at fair value through profit or loss - 4
Cash and cash equivalents 37 62
Total 37 66

The Company has the nght to recall any collateral pledged provided that this 1s replaced with aliernative acceptable assets
Collateral pledged continues to be recognised on the Company's balance sheet
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Risk management (continued)

Collateral amounts held aganst derivatives are not recognised as assets Assets with a farr value of £309m (2011 £454m)
were accepied by the Company as collateral, of which £ml (2011 £ml) 1s permitted to be sold or repledged n the absence of
default The policy of the Company 1s not to repledge assets, and no collateral was sold or repledged by the Company during
the year or 1n the prior year The Company has an obligation to retumn these assets to the pledgor

The Company enters 1nto stocklending transactions The SAWPIM 1s responsible for setting the parameters of stocklending
and therefore changes to these parameters The accepted collaterai can include cash, equities, certan bonds and money
market instruments On a daily basis, the fair value of collateral 15 compared to the fair value of stock on loan The value of
collateral must always exceed the value of stock on loan

All collateral held relates to fully performing assets
Collateral 1n respect of stocklending

The Company enters into stocklending transactions The Insurance [nvestment Strategy Committee (IISC) and its sub-
commuttee [nvestment Management Operational Review Commuttee (IMCR) are responsible for setting the parameters of
stocklending and therefore changes to those parameters The accepted collateral can include cash, equities, certain bonds and
money market instruments  On a daily basis, the fair value of collateral 1s compared to the fair value of stock on loan The
value of collateral must always exceed the value of stock on loan

Stocklending 1s permutted in accordance with the Insurance Stocklending Policy  All stocklending takes place on an
open/call basis, enabling the loan to be recalled at any time within the standard settlement terms of the market concerned

The policy requires all lending to be undertaken via a fully indemnified programme (where the agent of the programme
provides an indemnification against borrower and collateral default)

Addittonally, IMOR will set lumts on the maximum amount of any security that may be lent and the markets in which
lending can take place

The Company enters into securities lending transactions whereby cash and securities are temporarily recerved or transferred
as collateral Assets and habilines relaung to such arrangements at 31 December are as follows

Asset Related Liabihty
20612 2011 2012 2011
£m £ m £m £m
Equity Investments 6 73 17 51
Debt Investments 1768 1,003 1,860 1,076
Assets subject to repurchase 1,774 1,076 1,877 1,127

The policy requires acceptable collateral to be pledged to at least the value of securities lent and sets specific parameters over
what qualifies as acceptable collateral

There were no collateral defaults 1n respect of stocklending during the vear ended 31 December 2012 (2011 none) which
required a call to be made on coliateral

Collateral pledged in respect of a repurchase agreement with HBOS Treasury continues to be recognised on the Company’s
balance sheet The amount pledged was £78m (2011 £274m)

(4) Financial soundness risk

Financial soundness nsk covers the nisk of financial failure, reputational loss or loss of earmings and/or value ansing from a
lack of hquidity, funding or capital and/or the nappropniate recording, reporting or disclosure of financial, taxation and
regulatory information

(1) Financial and prudential regulatory reporting, tax and disclosure risks

The Company 15 exposed to the risk that policies and procedures are not sufficient to maintain adequate books and records to
support statutory, regulatory and tax reporung and to prevent and detect financial reporting fraud
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Risk management (continued)

The Company has developed procedures to ensure that compliance with both current and potential future requirements are
understood and that policies are ahigned 10 1ts risk appetite  The Company has established a system of internal controls, the
objective of which 1s to provide reasonable assurance that transact:ons are recorded and undertaken 1n accordance with
delegated authorities that permut the preparation and disclosure of financial statements, regulatory reporting and tax returns in
accordance with [FRSs, statutory and regulatory requirements

The Company undertakes a programme of work designed to support an annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting, to 1dentify tax habilities and to assess emerging legislation and regulation

() Liguidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its financial commitments as they
fall due, or can secure them only at an excessive cost Liquidity nsk may result from either the inability to sell financial
assets quickly at their fair values, or from an msurance hability falling due for payment earlier than expected, or from the
nability to generate cash inflows as anticipated

Liquidity risk has been analysed as arising from payments to pelicyholders (including those where payment 15 at the
discretion of the policyholder) and non policyholder related activity (such as investment purchases and the payment of
shareholder expenses)

In order to quantify the liquidity nisk exposure various stress tests are considered At the start of 2012 liquidity nsk was
measured by comparing the projected outflow n the stress scenano for twelve months of surrenders and three months of
maturities against the sum of liquid resources available Durning 2012 a new Liquidity risk appetite was ntroduced that
required that 1n a one-in-ten year event the Company still has suffisent hquid assets to cover three imes net cash flows (to
policyholders, shareholders and debt holders) A further revision was made to the liqmdity nisk appetite 1n December 2012
The new appetite considers two time periods, a three month stressed outflow 15 required to be covered by primary hquid
assets, and a one year stressed outflow 1s required to be covered by pnimary and secondary liquid assets, after taking account
of management actions Primary liquid assets are gilis or cash, and secondary liquid assets are tradable non-primary assets
Stressed outflows are based on the most severe of several scenarios, Company firm-specific stress scenarnios, FSA market-
wide scenarios, and FSA market wide scenarios with Insurance-specific overlays  The nisk appetite sets a coverage
benchmark of over 150%

Liquidity nisk in respect of each of the major product areas 1s primanly mitigated as follows

Annuty confracts

Assets are held which are specifically chosen to correspond to the expectation of timing of annuity payments Gilts, corporate
bonds, and, where required, denvatives are selected to reflect, the expected annuity payments as closely as possible and are
regularly rebalanced to ensure that this remains the case in future

With-profits contracts

For with-profits business, a portfolio of assets 15 held 1n line with investment mandates which will reflect policyholder
expectations as set out in the published PPFM

Liquidity 1s maintained within the portfolio via the holding of cash balances and a substantial number of highly liquid assets,
principally gilts and bonds Management also have the ability to sell less iquid assets at a reduced price 1f necessary, with
any loss passed on to policyholder in line with pohicyholders’ reasonable expectations Losses are managed and mitigated by
anticipating policyholder behaviour and sales of underlying assets within funds
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Risk management (continued)
Non-participating contracts

For unit-linked products, portfoltos are invested in accordance with unit fund mandates Deferral clauses are included
policyholder contracts to give time, when necessary, to reahise linked assets without being a forced seller As at 31 December
2012, there are £ml funds under management subject to deferral (2011 £n1l)

For non-linked products, investments are mostly held i gilts with mimmal hquidity nsk  Investments are arranged to
muumise the possibiiity of being a distressed seller whilst at the same time investing to meet policyholder obligations This s
achieved by anticipating policyholder behaviour and sales of underlying assets within funds

Shareholder funds
For shareholder funds, liquidity risk 1s managed in line with the with the Insurance Liquidity Risk Policy and the wider LBG
Funding and Liquidity Risk Policy

The following tables indicate the nmuing of the contractual cash flows arising from the Company’s financial habilities, as
required by I'RS 7 Liquidity nisk tn respect of insurance and participating investment contract habilities has been analysed
based on the expected pattern of maturities as permitted by IFRS 4 rather than by contractual maturity A maturity analysis
of non-participating investment contracts based on expected contract maturities 1s also given as 1t 1s considered that this
analysis proevides addittonal useful information in respect of the Liquidity risk relating to contracts written by the Company

As at 31 December 2012

Liabilities Carrying Contractual cash flows (undiscounted)

amount* No stated Less than 1-3 312 1-5 years  More than

maturity 1 month months months S years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Non-participating
imvestment 7,862 - 7,862 * - - - -
contract habilities
Derivative
financial 267 - 3 4 - 6 254
instruments
Subordinated debt 846 388 - - 35 142 946
Other financial 268 ) 268 } ) ; )
habilities
Total 9,243 388 8,133 4 35 148 1,200

*The carrying amount 1s presented on 2 discounted basis  In accordance with IFRS 7, the contractual cash flows are
presented on an undiscounted basis

As at 31 December 2011

Liabihties Carrying Contractual cash flows (undiscounted)

amount® No stated  Less than 1 1-3 312 1-5 years  More than

maturity month months months S years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Non-participating
mvestment 7,723 - 7,723 - - - -
contract habilities
Dernvative
financial 286 - 2 13 - - 271
mstruments
Subordinated 595 396 - . 12 50 268
debt
Other financial 472 } 472 ) } ; )
habilities
Total 9,076 396 8,197 13 12 50 539
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Risk management (continued)

The contractual cash flow analysis set out above has been based on the earliest possible contractual date, regardless of the
surrender penalties that might apply and has not been adjusted to take account of such penalties

An analysis of the contractual cash flows wn respect of msurance and investment contract habilities by expected contract
maturity, on a discounted basts, 1s shown below

As at 31 December 2012

Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
investment contracts £m than months months years than 5
1 month £m £m £m years

£m £m

Insurance contract and participating mvestment

14,993 159 325 1,404 4,744 8,361
contract liabiliies
Non-participating investment contract habilines 7,862 73 144 637 2470 4,538
As at 31 December 2011
Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
mvestment contracts £m than months months years than 5

1 month £m £fm £m years
£m £m

[nsurance contract and participating mvestment 15,821 160 328 1,495 5212 8.626
contract hablittes
Non-participating investment contract llabilhities 7,723 66 133 605 2275 4,644

(i) Capatal sk
Capital risk 15 defined as the risk that

¢ the Company has insufficient capital to meet 1ts regulatory capital requirements,

o the Company has insufficient capital to provide a stable resource to absorb all losses up to a confidence level defired in
the risk appetite

¢« the Company loses reputational status by having capital that 1s regarded as inappropriate, erther in quantity, type or
distribution and/or

¢  the caprtal structure 1s inefficient

Within the Insurance Division, capital risk 15 actively monuitored by the IFCC

The Company 1s regulated by the FSA The FSA specifies the mimimum amount of capital that must be held by the Company
1n addition to their insurance liabilines

Under the FSA rules, the Company must hold assets 1in excess of the igher of

{n the Pillar 1 amount, which s calculated by applying fixed percentages of mathematical reserves and capital at nsk,
and
{1} the Pillar 2 amount, which 1s derived from an economuc capital assessment undertaken by each regulated company,

which 1s reviewed by the FSA

The mummum required capital must be maintawned at all umes throughout the year These capital requirements and the
capital available to meet them are regularly estimated n order to ensure that capital mamntenance requirements are being met

The Company's objectives when managing capital are

e to comply with the insurance capital requirements set out by the FSA 1n the UK,

s  to have sufficient capital to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that 1t can continue to
provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,

« when capital 15 needed, to require an adequate return to the shareholder by pricing insurance and nvestment contracts
according to the level of nisk associated with the business written, and

«  to meet the requirements of the Scheme of Transfer
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{d)

Risk management (continued)

The capital management strategy 1s such that the single integrated insurance business (comprising SWG and 1ts subsidianes,
mcluding the Group) will hold capital in hine with the stated nisk appetite for the business, which 1s to be able to withstand a
one In ten year stress event without breaching the solvency capital requirements At SWG level it 1s intended that all surplus
capital above that required to absorb a one 1n ten year stress event will be distributed to LBG

The Company’s capital comprises all components of equity, movements in which are set out in the statement of changes in
equity and includes subordinated debt (note 26)

The table below sets out the regulatory capital and the required capital held at 31 December 1n each year on a Pillar 1 basis
I'he current year information 1s based upon the 2012 FSA returns

2012 2011

£m £m

Regulatory capital held 2,584 2,658
Regulatory capital required 1,472 1,493

All minimum regulatory requirements were met during the year

Operational risk

Operational risk covers the risk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from inadequate
or farled internal processes and systems, or from people related or external events

There are a number of categories of operational nsk
Conduct risk

The nisk of regulatory censure and/or a reduction in earnings/value, through financial or reputational loss, from mmappropriate
or poor customer outcomes Associated rnisks include poor product design and development, customer advice, customer
service and customer complaint handling

Customer treatment and how LBG as a whole manages 1ts customer relationships affects all aspects of the Company's
operations and 1s closely aligned with achievement of LBG's strategic vision to be the best bank for customers There
remains a high level of scrutiny regarding the treatment of customers by financial nstitutions from regulatory bodes, the
press and peliticians

People risk

The nisk of reductions 1n earmings and/or value through financial or reputational loss arising from ineffectively leading
colleagues responstbly and proficiently, managing people resource, supporting and developing colleague talent or meeting
regulatory obligations related to our people

Finanaial crime and security risk

Financial crime nisk covers the risk of reduction in earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, associated
with financial crime and faillure to comply with related regulatory obhgauons, these losses may nclude censure, fines or the
cost of htigation This includes nsks associated with fraud and bnbery, and obligations related to money laundering,
sanctions and counter terrorism

Secunty nsk relates to the nisk of reductions 1n earntngs and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resutting from
the thefl of, or damage to the Group s assets, the loss, corruption, misuse or theft of the Group’s information assets or threats
or actual harm to the Group's people This also includes risks relating to terrorist acts, other acts of war, geopoltical,
pandemic or other such events
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(e)

Risk management (continued)
Orgamsational infrastructure and change risk

Orgamisational infrastructure risk covers the nisk of reductions in earmngs and/or value, through financial or reputational loss,
resulting from poor internally facing business processes at a divisional and company level Organisational infrastructure in
this context embraces the structures, systems and processes that provide direction, contrel and accountability for the
enterprise Change nisk comprises the risk of potential loses from change initiatives failing to dehver to requirements, budget
or timescale, failing to implement change effectively or farling to realise desired benefits

Political nsk

Political risk 1s the risk of reductions in earnings and/or value through financial loss from a changing poliical environment
n the absence of a definitive, agreed and fully-implemented solution to the Eurozone cnisis there continues to be some risk
that ongoing economic uncertainty in Europe and the availability of credit could cause a return to recession n the UK and
freland

A Scottish Independence referendum 1s due to be held in 2014 A LBG Scotush Constitutional Change Steering Group, with
cross-Group representation, has been set up to assess any potential impact for the business

Supplhier management risk

The nisk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value through financial or reputational loss from services with outsourced partners
or third party suppliers

IT Systems risk

The risk of reductions in earmings and/or value through financial or reputational loss resulting from the failure to develop,
deliver or mamntain effecuve IT solutions

Legal and regulatory risks

Legal and regulatory risk 1s the risk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from failing
to comply with the laws, regulations or codes applicable

A provision 15 held in respect of German liigation This is discussed further 1 note 24

The volume of actual and expected regulatory change remains gh where work 1s ongoing to review, assess and embed new
regulatory requirements into day-to-day operational and business practices across the Company

Regulators are interested in protecting the nights of the pelicyholders and ensuring that the Company 1s sausfactorily
managing affairs for the benefit of the policyholders Regulators are also keen to ensure that the Company mamtains
appropriate solvency levels to meet unforeseen habilines ansing from reasonably foreseeable economic shocks or natural
disasters  As such, the Company 15 subject to regulatory requirements which prescribe and impose certamn restrictive
provisions
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Related party transactions
a) Ulumate parent and shareholding
The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is Scottish Widows plc, 2 company registered in the United Kingdom

The Company s ulumate parent undertaking and ultimate controlling party 1s Lloyds Banking Group plc, which s also the parent
undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group accounts are drawn up and of which the Company 1s a member

Scottish Widows ple 1s the parent undertaking of the smallest such group of undertakings Copies of the Lloyds Bankimg Group
plc financial statements in which the Company 1s consolidated can be obtained from the Group Secretary s Department, Lloyds
Banking Group plc, 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking ts Scottish Widows ple, a company registered in the United Kingdom  Clencal
Medical Invesiment Group has taken advantage of the provisions of the Compames Act 2006 and has not produced consolidated
financial statements

(b} Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions between the Company and other compantes 1n the Lloyds Banking Group

The Company has entered mto the following transactions with other related parties dunng the year and holds the following
balances with other related parties at the end of the year

Transactions 1n the Year Qutstanding Balance at 31
December
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Relationship
Ultimate Parent undertaking:
Investments and amounts receivable/(payable) (5) (8) 9 14
Commussion and amounts payable {1 - (1) -
Parent undertakings:
Reassurance and amounts receivable/(payabie) 89 (3) 24 64
Subsidiary undertakings
Expense recharges and amounts receivable/(payable) {1) (m 29) 31
Commussion and amounts receivable - - 1 1
Reassurance and amounts receivable/(payable) 8,018 6 21 23
Loans receivable (20) {43) 29 49
Davidends received 50 334 - -
Holding 1t OEICs - - 7,046 3,894
Other related parties
Expense recharges and amounts recervable/(payable) 24 (34) (8) (32)
Bank charges receivable - {28) - -
Interest receivable - 3 - -
Cash and amounts receivable/(payable) 193 59 (%) (271)
Reassurance and amounts receivable/(payable) - 9 - 27
Management fees and amounts payable 2 {33) 4) {6)
Loans 3D {40) 11 42
Subordinated debt {237) 19 (808) 571)
Holding in OEICs - - 5,469 -
Debt securitics 515 - 515 -
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34.

Related party transactions (continued)
Transactions between the Company and key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibihity for planming, directing and controlling the
activiuies of the Company which, for the Company, are the Executive Directors

Transactions between the key management personnel of the Company and parties related to them as defined by IAS 24 are as
follows

2012 2011

£ 000 £ 000
Salanes and other short-term benefits 300 781
Post-employment benefits 13 15
Share-based payments 43 167
Total 361 963

Certain members of key management in the Company, including the highest paid director, provide services to other companies
within the Lloyds Banking Group In such cases, for the purposes of this note, figures have been included based on an
apportionment to the Company of the total compensation earned

Retirement benefits are accriing to four Directors and key management personnel (2011 one) under defined benefit pension
schemes Ten Directors and key management personnel (2011 two) are paying into a defined contribution scheme

Detail regarding the highest paid Director 1s as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Apportioned aggregate emoluments 42 157
Defined benefits pension scheme accrued benefit at 31
December 2 -

The highest paid Director exercised share options during the year and was granted shares in respect of qualifying service during the
year This was also the case in the prior year These have been disclosed 1n the LBG consolidated accounts

HM Treasury

In January 2009, HM Treasury became a related party of the Company following its subscription for ordinary shares in Lloyds
Banking Group plc, the Company’s ultimate parent company, 1ssued under a placing and open offer HM Treasury held a 39 per
cent (31 December 2011 40 per cent) interest in Lloyds Banking Group's ordinary share capital and, consequently, HM
Treasury remained a related party of the Company throughout 2012

There were no matenal transactions between the Company and HM Treasury during the year (2011 none) that were not made 1n
the ordinary course of business or that are unusual mn their nature or conditions In addition, the Company has entered nto
transactions with HM Treasury on an arm's length basis including, but not exclusively mn relation to, the payment of corporation tax,
employment tax, and value added tax Owing to the volume and diversity, such transactions are not disclosed

Stocklending
The aggregate value of secunities on loan by the Company 15 £1,774m (2011 £1,076m) Secunities on loan are included n

investments at fawr value through profit or loss and no account 15 taken of collateral held The aggregate value of collateral
held 15 £1,877m (2011 £1,127m) Further detail in respect of collateral 1s provided tn note 32
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3e.

Operating leases

The total future minimum rental payments receivabie under non-cancellable leases, including subleases, are as follows

2012 2011

£m £m
Within one vear 41 39
Between two and five years 145 157
Beyond five years 340 393
Total 526 589
The total future mimimum rental payments payable under non-cancellable leases are as follows

2012 2011

£m £m
Within one year 7 11
Between two and five years - -
Bevond five years - -
Total 7 11

The total of contingent rents recognised as income during the year was £n11 (2011 £nil) The total of contingent rents recognised
as operating expenses during the year was £ml1 (2011 £nil) Generally the Company's operating leases are for terms of 15 years or
more

Standards and interpretations effective 1n 2012

The Company has adopted the fellowing new standards and amendments to standards which became effective for financial
vears beginning on or after 1 January 2012 WNone of these standards or amendments has had a matenal impact on these
financial statements

(1) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets (Amendments to IFRS 7) Requires disclosure in respect of all transferred
financial assets that are not derecogmised in their entirety and transferred assets that are derecognised 1n their entirety but
with which there 1s continuing imnvelvement

(1) Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendment to [AS 12) Introduces a rebuttable presumption that
investment property measured at fair value 1s recovered entrely through sale and that deferred tax in respect of such
investment properiy are recognised on that basis The Company's existing practices are consistent with this Amendment

Details of those IFRSs pronouncements which will be relevant to the Company but which were not effective at 31 December
2012 and which have not been appled in prepanng these financial statements are given i note 37
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Future accounting developments

The following pronouncements may have a significant effect on the Company's financial statements but are not applicable for
the year ending 31 Drecember 2012 and have not been applied n preparing these financial statements  Except as discussed
below, the full impact of these accounting changes 1s being assessed by the Company

Pronouncement

Nature of change

1ASB effective date

Amendments to [AS 1
"Presentation of  Financial
Statements" — ‘Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income’ ' 2

Amendments to IFRS 7

"Financial Instruments
Disclosures” —  ‘Disclosures-
Oiffsetting

Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements™

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests
i Other Entities”

IFRS 13 ‘ Fair
Measurement”

Value

Amendments to [AS 32
"Financial Instruments
Presentation" —
‘Offsettmg Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities’

Requires entities to group items presented in other
comprehensive mncome on the basis of whether they
are potentially reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently

Requires an entity to disclose information to enable
users of 1ts financial statements to evaluate the effect
or potential effect of netting arrangements on the
entity’s balance sheet

Replace those parts of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement’ refating to  the
classification, measurement and derecogmition of
financial assets and lLabilites  IFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement
categones, fair value and amortised cost, on the basis
of the objectives of the entity’s business model for
managing 1ts financial assets and the contractual cash
flow charactenstics of the mstrument, and eliminates
the available-for-sale financial asset and held-to-
maturity mvestment categories mn IAS 39 The
requirements for financial habihiies and derecognition
are broadly unchanged from IAS 39

Supersedes IAS 27 "Consohdated and Separate
Financial Statements” and SIC-12 Consolidation
"Special Purpose Entities" and establishes the
principles for when an entity controls another entity
and therefore 13 required to consohdate the other entity
in group financial statements The effect of applying
thus IFRS to the Company could result 1in a change 1n
collective investment vehicles classified as investments
in subsidiaries

Requires an entity to disclose information that enables
users of financial statements to evaluate the nature of|
and nisks associated with, its interests in other entities
and the effects of those interests on 1ts financial
posttion, financial performance and cash flows

Defines far value, sets out a framework for measuring
farr value and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements [t applies to IFRSs that require or
permit fair value measurements or disclosures about
fair value measurements

Inserts application gmdance to address inconsistencies
identified in applymng the offsetting criterta used in the
standard Some gross settlement systems may quahfy
for

offsetting where they exhibit certain characteristics
akin to net settlement

! At the date of this report, these pronouncements are awaiting EU endersement
2IFRS 9 1s the in1tial stage of the project to replace TAS 39 Future stages are expected to result in amendments to [FRS 9 to
deal with changes to the impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost and hedge accounting, as well as a
reconsideration of classification and measurement Unul all stage of the replacement project are complete, 1t 15 not possible
to determine the overall impact on the financial statements of the replacement of IAS 39

Annual periods begmning on
or after
I July 2012

Annual pertods begmning on
or after 1 January 2013

Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015

Annual pertods begmning on
or after 1 January 2013

Annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013

Annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013

Annual penods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014
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38

Post Balance Sheet Events

The proposed further reductions in the rate of corporation tax to 21 per cent by | Apnl 2014 15 expected to be enacted during
2013 The effect of this further change upon the Company's deferred tax balances cannot be reliably quantified at this stage
The proposed further reductions n the rate of corporation tax to 20 per cent by | Apnl 2015 1s expected to be enacted during
2014 The effect of this further change upon the Company's deferred tax balances cannot be reliably quantified at this stage
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